Company Registration No. 07085757 (England and Wales)

INFOBIP LIMITED
ANNUAL REPORT AND FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

*ABDD3HSW*
Al4 #45

26/09/2022
COMPANIES HOUSE




INFOBIP LIMITED

COMPANY INFORMATION

Directors

Company number

Registered office

Auditar

| Jelenic

R Kutic

5 Kutic

A Kusurin

M Baburic

P C Schiorr IV

07085757

Sth Floor

35-38 New Bridge Street
Lendorn

EC4V 6BW

BDO LLP

55 Baker Street
London

W1U JEU




INFOBIP LIMITED

CONTENTS

Page

Strategic report 1-5
Directors’ report 6-8
Directors' responsibifities statement 10
Independent auditot’s report 11-13
Group profit and loss account 14
Grotp statement of comprehensive income 15
Group balance sheet 16
Company balance sheet 17
Group statemnent of changes in equity 18
Company statement of changes in equity 18
Group statement of cash flows 20

Notes to the financial statements 21-54




INFOBIP LIMITED
STRATEGIC REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

The diractors present the strategic report for the year ended 31 December 2021,
Fair review of the business

Infobip is 2 global doud communications platform that enables businesses to build connected customer
experiences across all stages of the customer journey at scale, with easy to use and contextualized interactions
over customers' preferred channels. Accessed through a single platform, Infobip's omni-channel engagement,
identity, user authentication, security, and contact centre solutions help clients and pariners overcome the
complexity of consumer communications, grow their business, and increase loyalty.

Revenues increased by €507m (72%) compared with 2020. Gross profit also increased by €114m (81%).
Adjusted EBITDA decreased by €27m ard the group reported a statutory less of €155m, compared with statutory
{oss of €38m in 2020, due to continued irvestment in technology and people, as weli as significant non-cash
expenses (€102m) below EBITDA.

Investing in future growth, the group’s average headcount increased by 862 (37%) to a full year average of 3,179
Around 350 were added by acquiring CpenMarket and Anam, and others were hired fo strengthen R&D and
sales, as well as back office functions to support future transactions and corporate activity. The group does not
yet elect to capitalise intemal development and expanded investment in research and development, which has
increased €32m over 2020 (organically and M&A), has directly impacted the result for the year. 2021 continued
to be year of expansion for Infobip, across both revenues and market share, growing at steady pace.

Infobip continted investing in expanding partnerships with key messaging chat application companies, extending
its reach by adding additional both regional and global chat applications in its portfolio. Investrents in this
segment, further fuel growth across [nfobip's key markets, as businesses are looking to meet consumers in the
places where consumers spend their time.

At the end of 2021, Infebip faunched Exchange. Exchange is a marketplace which allows customers to easily
browse, select, and implement applications and integrations built on top of Infobip platforms by 3rd party ISVs.
These value-adds streamline communication between Infobip solutions and external tools like CRM, ticketing,
and marketing platforms. infobip continues to expand its partner network. In 2021, we have reached partnership
agreements with Microsoft, Oracle, Adobe, Freshworks and others. On-going partner network expansion has
seen 108 new paitners being added, acrass the globe, to further accelerate market adoption of infobip's CPaaS
and software and a service portfolio,

Employing over 3,500 staff at 31 December 2021, the company continues to invest in Jocal expertise fo provide
customers the ability to engage locaily, with firm belief that customer first approach an local terms makes infobip
stand out from the aternative options.

infobip has been continuously recognized by various associations for innovation, quality and leadership across
its product portfolio, receiving awards in multiple categories.

In September 2021, Infobip secured, through direct loan placement, additional funding in the amount of $500m,
advised by Morgan Stanley, and ied by funds managed by the Credit Group of Ares Management Corporation,
and funds and accounts managed by BiackRock. The direct loan placement puts Infobip alongside other
cotnpanies of high growth, high value technology companies, which utilised the same structure. The funding will
be used for general corporate purposes as well as Peerless acquisition.

2024 marked significant operationat growth across key strategic Markets, such as North America {driven by
OpenMarket acquisition), APAC, LATAM, Europe and india.

Following the acquisition of OpenMarket, Seaftle, USA based commurications company, Infobip continued to
make strategic acquisitions in 2021. In January 2021, Infobip acquired Shitt, the top developers’ conference in
Southeast Europe. The Shift acquisition will help Infobip increase adoption among the developer community. [n
May 2021, Infobip acquired ANAM Technclogies, the world leading SMS firewall vendor providing messaging
solutions to more than B0 mobile network operators with more than 806 million custorners. This strategic
acguisition strengthene Infobip's position as the first choice for mobile nefwork operators. Towards the end of the
year, Infobip entered into a definitive agreement to acquire the US-based VolP provider Peeriess Network
Peerless Network covers 93% of the US population theretore providing irfobip with a streng foathold into the
voice market in the United States.




INFOBIP LIMITED
STRATEGIC REPCRT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

Promoting the success of the company

This statemett aligns to the section 172 of the Companies Act 2006 (the Act). The statement focuses on how the
Directors have had regard during the year to the matters set out in section 172(1) (a) to {f) of the Act when
performing their duties.

Each of the Directors acted in the way he considered, in good faith, would most likely promote the success of the

company for the benefit of its members as a whole. The Directors have had regard, amongst other matters, fo the:
. likely consequences of any decisions |n the long-term;

interests of the company's employees;

need to foster the company's business relationships with suppliers, customers and others;

impact of the company’s operations on the community and environment;

desirabitity of the company maintaining a reputation for high standards of business conduct; and

need to act fairly between members of the company.

While perferming their duties, the Directors have had regard te a number of matters obtained through, inter alia,
listening to the company's key stakeholders (employees, clients, suppliers efc.) in order to ensure they fully
understand the potential impacts of every decision. Such impact of the company's activities is one of the most
important considerations when making important decisions, such as those noted below:

Significant events and Stakehclders Considerations

decisions impacted

Maturing Soffware as a Services products

Sector and market focus  Employees, suppliers  «

and customers = Growing pariner ecosystermn
Products and services Employees, ¢ Launch of Infobip Exchange marketplace

suppliers and

customers
Acquisiton of Empiloyees, suppliers More cornprehensive offering, a wider product set
Anam and customers and a deeper combined solution for exceptional end-

Cayman reorganisation

Intermal Group
struchure

user experience, and enhanced A2P monetization
Insertion of a new holding company, with no change
in uitimate ownership of the Group, to prepare for
potential future transactions or carporate activity.

A long-term strategy for the combined business

Acquisition of Employees, suppliers
Peerless and customers adding - combining Peeriess' ieading voice offering
with Infobip’s global messaging capabilities truly
prepares us for ieadership in the rapidly developing
market for cloud communications.
Covid-19 Employees and Extensive engagement with our people to ensure
customers their safety and wellbeing
Maintaining full service and operations in all geographies
Environment and All Donation of equipment to schaols and other
community educational institutions

Sponsorship of activities focused on the welibeing of
the wider community

Further detajl of the considerations applied by the Directors in respect of these key events and decisions and
their broader approach to ensuring the interests of the business stakeholders are adequately considered is set
out below.
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STRATEGIC REPORT
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Understanding what is importart to infobip’s customers is a key to the business's fong-term success. The
Directors received regular reporting about customers and about strategic initiatives. Furthermore the Directors
closely monitored customers' experience along with a dedicated leadership team in order to understand
customers’ expectations.

In 2021 Infobip continued to develop and mature its SaaS applications: Answers (chatbot building platform),
Conversations (emrichannel contact center solution}, and Moments (ormnichannel customer engagement hub).

At the end of 2021, Infobip launched Exchange. Exchange is a marketplace which allows customers to easily
browse, selact, and implement applications and integrations built on top of Infobip piatforms by 3rd party I1SVs.
These value-adds sfreamtfine communication between Infobip solutions and external toals likke CRM, ticketing,
and marketing platforms.

Infobip continues to expand its pariner network. In 2021, Infobip has reached partnership agreements with
Microsoft, Cracle, Adebe, Freshworks and others. On-going partner hetwork expansion has seen 278 new
partners being added, across the globe, to further accelerate market adoption of Infobip’s CPaaS and software
and a service portfolio,

Infobip has a centinuous practice of donating T equipment (hardware) to schools and other educational
institutions. infobip reqularly donates and sponsors various programs focusing on initiatives and activities which
contribute to the wellbeing of the wider community with emphasis on the fields of stience, technology,
engineering, arts, mathematics, education, social solidarity and culture.

The Directors are committed to recruiting, training and retaining the best talent that can be found. The Directors
recognise that infobip's employees are fundamental and core to growth of business and delivery of ils strategic
ambitions. The directors recognise that the success of business depends on motivating employees. With that in
mind the Directors' actions are oriented to remain a responsible employer offering attractive compensation
packages as welk varicus benefits to employees. One of the main atiraction and retention too! being providing
stock options to each new hire — since October 2021 - as well as regular stock options packages distribution for
our top talents and key people.

The Directors provide employees regularly and imely with the information en all matters of concem te them,
such as company-wide quarterdy overviews of company's objectives and key results or significant company
announcements and news, throughout the year, achieving a common awareness in al offices worldwide.

Akongside global intemal commurication, there are specific regional and vertical internal communication with the
specific, tailor-made messages. This type of intemal communication is provided through e-mail communication,
company's intranet, internal newsletters etc,

Cansuitation of employees (in ordet to obtain their opinien on important decisions) takes place through: Infobip
Product ldeas Partal (internal forum for sharing ideas regarding products and more), intemal events and forum,
slack groups ets.

With introduction of enterprise social platform, Workplace by Facebook, the intemal communication bas become
more dynamic, with specific regional/lemployee/business topic affinities group engaging employees additionalty,

An important part of infobip's culture (and decision making processes) is the promotion of high legal, ethical,
environtment and employee refated standards. Values aligned to high standard business conduct are
incorporated into Infobip's policies, of which the most important is the Code of Conduct. In making decisions,
these values aim to preserve fair competition, integrity, human rights, applicable regutations, sustainabiiity and
innovation. These values are also embedded in subsidiaries wordwide through our global internal policies and
practices.

It is important to emphasize that Infobip conducts its business in envionmentally and socially responsible
manner, ensuring that success and development does not explait natural resources. The actions are committed
to minimizing ervironmentat footprint by making changes in our everyday husiness, as well as pursuing
sustainability initiatives such as reducing waste, conserving energy and water, and promoting recycling.

In conciusion, during last year the Directors acted in the way they considered, in good faith, wouid be most tikely
to promote Infobip's success, all based on the data, predictions and informaticn available to them at the time
when the actions were taken.
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Principal risks and uncertainties
The prirary rsks to which the group is exposed are credit risk, currency risk, interest rate risk and liquidity risk.
Credit fsk:

The group's credit risk is primarily attributable to its principal assets, being cash balances, trade and other
receivables. The group has adopted and further improved several policies to mitigate the risk of client default
and non-payment, together with regular monitoring and reporting on aged trade receivables. Risk mitigation
activities, include implementation of credit limits on the major part of existing portfoiio, which was conducted
during 2021. The group does not have significant concentration of credit risk, with exposure spread over a large
number of clients. Where trade reseivables are considered to be uncoflectable, that amount of receivables is
written off to the profit and loss account as a loss of the current pericd. The credit risk on cash balances is
considered imited because the counterparties are banks with high credit ratings.

During 2021 Infobip implemented existing risk policies and procedures in newly acquired Open Market in order
to have ynified credit risk management approach across the whole group.

Despite widespread COVID-18 pandemic, Infobip's portfolic remains very stable, with robust credit risk
managetnent procedures in place, especially in terms of risk assessment, monitoring and collection activities.

Currency risk:

The group is operaling in various intermational markets with exposure to more than 50 different cumencies. The
group’s reparting currency is euro. This global presence comes with a significant currency risk both on the side
of inflows and outflows. Fluctuation In value between euro and foreign curencies is affecting revenues, costs,
and operating profits. Group is using three different mechanisms of protection from cumency risk:
. Natural hedging - currency adjustment of inflows and outflows.
2. Contractual hedging — implementing protective clauses into customers and suppliers’ agreements.
3. Market hedging ~ protecting our net exposures above €1m threshold using derivative instruments such
as FX forwards and FX swaps.

Interest Rate Risk:

The group interest rate risk arises from existing debt financing arrangement. The credit facility has floating
interest rate tied to 3 months USD LIBOR. The upward movement in reference rate is resulting in higher irterest
cost for The Group. Te mitigate interest rate risk and fix interest cost for The Group inerest rate swap Is executed
for the same notional amount as the principal amount of the existing credi facility.

Liquidity and cash flow risk:

The group monitors its kiquidity risk related to the potential shortage of funds by collecting data from all related
companies on a daily basis. Daily and weekly cash flow forecasts are approved and menitored regularly at the
group level whereas on a core company level a TWCF model (13-week cash flow medel) is being prepared as to
render a forward looking quarterly view on anticipated liquidity development.

During Q4 2021 Revolving Credit Facilities and afll investment loans were refinanced by USD 500m Term Loan
Facility, with part of proceeds also being used for working capital purposes while the remaining funds were
invested into selective financial assets and are in greater part reserved for completion ofannounced M&A activity.
Funding flexibility is achieved through the aforestated Term Loan Facility, leases and also through intra- group
lending.

Moreover, we have rendered available €50m Master Factoring Agreement with Raiffeisenbank Intemational,
whereby we are executing purchase of selecled receivables on a non-recourse basis thus providing us with
support to increasing working capital requirernents due to increase in revenues. Additionally, a documentary
business limit was also made available which will provide the group with improved flexibility and cash savings,
due to the: fact that cash deposits are no longer needed for guarantee. No other debt requirements exist at present
as current perfortnance and exisfing working capital are supporting current liquidity needs.

_4-
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STRATEGIC REPORT (CONTINUED)
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Covid-19 risk:

The activities of the group have not been unduly impacted by Covid-19 and the business has been able to continue
providing its full offering of services to customers throughout 2021, Further details of how the business has
responded, and continues to monitor the risk of Covid-19 is set out in the Directors' report.

Key performance indicators
The summary consolidated results for the Group for the year ending 31 December 2021 are set out below:

2021 2020

€m €m
Sales 1215 708
Gross profit 254 140
Gross profit margin % 20.9% 19.8%
Adjusted EBFTDA* (17 10
Adjusted EBITDA %* -1.4% 1.4%

*Adjusted EBITDA is a non-GAAP measure, being it is not a measure recognised or defined under UK GAAP. The
Directots consider that this measure may be heipful to users of the financial statements. Adjusted EBITDA is earnings
before Anterest, tax, depreciation, impairment, amertisation, foreign exchange gains and losses, exceptional and
sepaf' ely reported items.

On pehait of the board

The dlrectors pm;ent their annual report and financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2021.
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DIRECTORS' REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

Principal activities

Infobip is an established global expert in the fast-growing business communications and messaging space, offering
a cloud-based dellvery model that helps organizations drive growth and loyalty through data-driven conversational
customer journeys.

Infobip’s giobal cloud communications piatform enables businesses fo build connected custamer expeniences across
all stages of the customer journey at scale, with easy and contextualized interactions over cusiemers’ preferred

channels.

At its core is a single-nterface, scalable, and easy to use cloud-based communications platform. This full-stack
offering, provides businesses with one seamless Application Programming Interface (AP} or web-based interface
connection to their customers through the world’s most popular channels. The business offers omni-channel
engagement, identity, user authentication, security and contact centre solutions for each step of the communication
journey. Infobip helps clients and pariners simplify the complexity of global messaging. The company enables its
clients to efforflessly reach their customers, in line with all kocal regutations, through persoralized, contextual
conversations.

Infobip's customer engagement platform powers a broad range of solutions, messaging channels, and tools for
advanced customer engagement, authertication, security, and refention including SMS, MMS, RCS, voice, video,
email, Chatapps and more. Its digital cloud contact centre offering helps organizations establish and efficiently
maintain good relationships with customers ensuring a smooth, easy, and secure expetience that makes every

customer interaction count.

Infobip’s mabile operators portfolio combines network monitoring and fittering solutions with sales, consultancy and
suppert services to increase revenue generated in the Application to Person (A2P) SMS messaging. The Infobip
CPaaS business solutions model enables Mobile Network Operators (MNOs) fo create new revenue streams,
accelerate time to market, and build new enterprise relations.

With over a decade of industry experience, Infobip has expanded to include 70+ offices on six continents offering
matively built technology with the capacity {o reach aver seven billion mobile devices in 190+ countries connected to
aver 750 telecom networks.

The company serves and partners with leading mobile operators, messaging apps, banks, social networks, tech
companies, and aggregators. As of December 2021, the group employs over 3,500 people, among which 500+
engineers in 9 international research and development centres.

Key clients include intemet companies and mobile apps makers, banks and firancial services providers, developers,
mobile network operators, techrology companies, and other corporate customers,

Infobip group is an active member of leading global trade associations, including GSMA, MMA, Mobey Forum, MEF,
as well as numerous regional and national associations. The company holds ISO 9001 and ISO 27001 certificates,
and its SSMS service for secure PIN delivery is PCI DSS certified, meaning it is trusted to deliver even the most

sensitive cardholder information, like credit card PINs and numbers.

Directors .
The directors whe held office during the year and up to the date of signafure of the financial statements were as
foliows:

| Jelenie

R Kutic

S Kutic

A Kusurin

M Baburic

P C Schorr IV
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DIRECTORS' REPORT (CONTINUED)
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Results and dividends
The results for the year are set out on page 15,

No ordinary dividends were paid. The directors do not recommend payment of a final dividend.

Infobip Group - COVID-18

The global COVID-19 situation was dynamic throughott 2021 and remains to be a high agenda iterr in 2022.
infobip Group's intemai Crisis and Business Continuity Management teams has continued to monitor intemational
and national health information sources for any updates on next pandemic waves and has prepared responses
accordingly. The goal is to ensure the safety of all employees as well as the continuity of business operations.

In line with the gradual ease of the pandemic observed worldwide, the crisis management team decided on easing
some of the safety measures. From March 2022 full vaccination policy on-site was removed and employees had a
choice to work remotely or to work from the office for up to 50% of the office capacity when epldemiological sifuation
allowed and in fine with the local health authorities recommendation. The workplace reservation tool was deployed
and used in the largest offices to help regulate the number of people in the office and i ensure social distancing.

Starting from Apiil 2022, BIP Anywhere, a ilor-made workplace grogram, was introduced, its purpose is to enable a
smooth transition to flexible working arangements, within a country of employees' residence. After more than two
years of working from home a gradual increase of presence in the offices worldwide has been observed. Depending
on regional situation, the offices are available to employees who wish to work from the office. Entry to the office is no
longer affected by the safety measures in most of the countries. The exact workplace preference differs from teamto
tearn and the transition to hybrid work is tailored to each region to enable flexibility and adjustments on the local level.
Such working arrangements do not have any negative impact on the Group's operations or service provisions.

From June 2022, the Employee Assistance Program (EAP) has been introduced. EAP provides support in dealing
with personal or work-related problems that may impact employee’s health, mental and emetional wellbeing, or job
petformance. Ensuring social and psychelogical support is one of the aspects of dealing with pande mic.

Group energy and carbon report

The Group recognises the importance of meeting globally recognised responsibility standards and aims to minimise
its carbon footprint.

With regard to greenhouse gas etrissions, for the year ended 31 December 2021, the total amount of emission of the
Group entities in the UK was 36.15 tons of carben dioxide equivalent {CG2e). The calculation was in line with
Greenhouse Gas Protocol Corporate Accounting and Reporting Standard. The intensity ratio calculated as
consumption of carbon dioxide equivaient per employee is 284 kgtCO2e. Total energy consumption was 79 Mwh.
Total consumption relates to electricity paid for leased properties. No cotmparative data is provided as 2021 is the first
year of disclosure,

Russian Ukraine conflict

Infobip activated the company’'s Business Centinuity Plan related to armed conflict escalation on the 24th of February
2022 At the same time, Infobip Group's internal Crisis and Business Continuity Management teams were set up to
daily monitor the situation and are responding in real time to any issues arising, whether they be people or business
related. Of primary importance is to ensure the safety of ali employees with minimal disruption to business operations.
Infobip is working on supporting the existing customer base, following closely ali regulation so we can react with real-
fime and execute according to intemational sanctions. Ukraine reporting lines were moved into European organisation
and the team in Russia was redesigned with the focus on supporting the existing customer base and not working
actively in business expansion.

The Group continues to proactively monitor all international sanctions imposed on individuals and companies related
lo the conflict, and are actively warkdng on aligning with sanctions, and praviding altematives for business
cortinuance.




INFOBIP LIMITED
DIRECTORS" REPORT (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

Future developments

in the future Infobip will keep focusing on its ‘global' business strategy (globally prepared pregrammes locally
executed) in muttiple areas of operations. Infobip is welt positioned te capitalize oh new communication growth trends
with multiple well defired drivers for expansion. Infobip plans to grow infernaticrally whilst diversifying its revenue
streams through cloud-based digital solutions, voice, email and chatapp integrations. The group intends to focus on
strengthening its market share in the Americas, Asia, and Westem Europe, and continue adding to its capacity to
deliver exceptional quality to clients and partners on a global scale. The company will focus on further growing its key
industry verticals: finance & banking, retail & e-commerce, and sharing economy industries. Furthermore, as part of
an accelerated growth strategy, group will continue completing strategic mergers & acquisitions.

Infebip, has a fuli-stack in-house communications platform as a service {CPaaS) and are continuously expanding its
offerings in line with technology frends and market demands. Services such as the Intemet of Things (loT}, Rich
Communications Services (RCS), ChatApps, Mobile idenitity, Contact Centre as a Setvice (CCaaS}, Chatbots and
Customer Engagement solutions will be enhanced throughout 2022,

In 2022, Infobip will continue to expand Exchange, a marietplace that allows customers to easily browse, select and
implement applications and integrations built by Infobip or 3rd party 1SVs. Exchange will make it easy to publish,
market, and monetize applicafions and integrations. This will create additional revenue streams for Infobip and
increase its platform value by third-party complementary products.

The number and variety of services available online are growing and it will be additionally boosted once the benefits
of iaT are fully realized, loT is expected to be a key investment in the coming years, as the offline world, continuously
transitions in the online space.

Infobip believes that an integral part of its mission of creating seamless interactions is to heip its customers quickly
identify and secure their users’ transactions.

Continued investmert in proprietary infrastructure and felco connectivity will be essential for Infobip's ability to
maintain the competitive edge as the world's largest CPaaS. New high-end hardware, upgrades to the propriefary
software and underlying infrastructure, as well as continuous relationship nurturing with mobile operators to secure
connectvity, will continue to be the main activities in this area.

Additionaily, infobip will continue fo offer new channe! partnership models fo mobile network cperators (both as an
infrastructure camier and technology and expert partner), system integrators (for large brands aiready using the
consultancy, professional services and platforrn solutions) as well as new features such as customer engagement,
CRM, and e-commerce, as part of its platform partnership program.

Towards the end of the year, Infobip entered info a defintive agreement to acquire the US-based VoIP provider
Peeriess Network. Peeress Network covers 93% of the US population therefore providing Infobip with a strong
foothold into the voice market in the United States. On 25 July 2022 the Group has completed acquisition of the US-
based VelP provider Peerless Network.
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Auditor
1n accordance with the company's arficles, a resolution proposing that BDO LLP be reappointed as auditor of the
group will be put at a General Meeting.

Statement of disclosure to auditor

So far as each person who was a director at the date of approving this report is aware, there is no relevant audit
information of which the auditor of the company is unaware, Additionally, the directors individually have taken all the
necessary steps that they ought to have taken as directors in order to make themselves aware of all relevant audit
informatipn and to establish that the auditor of the company is aware of that information.

On behalf of the board

!
Kutic
5 irector

Wnimeom

Date i

v




INFOBIP LIMETED
DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITIES STATEMENT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

The directors are responsible for preparing the Annual Report and the financial statements in accordance with
applicable iaw and regulations.

Company law requires the directors to prepare financial statements for each financial year. Under that law the
directors have elected to prepare the financial statements in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice {United Kingdom Accounting Standards and applicable 1aw). Under company law the directors
misst not approve the financial statements unless they are satisfied that they give a true and fair view of the state of
affairs of the group and company, and of the profit or loss of the group for that period. In preparing these financial
statements, the directors are required to:

. select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;

. male judgements and accounting estimates that are reasonable and prudent;

»  state whether applicabie UK Accounting Standards have been followed, subject to any material departures
disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and

. prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume that the
group and company will continue in business.

The directars are responsible for keeping adequate accounting records that are sufficient fo show and explain: the
group’s and company’s transactions and disclose with reasonable accuracy at any time the financial position of the
group and company and enable them to ensure that the financial statements comply with the Companies Act 2006.
They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the group and company and hence for taking reasonable
steps for the prevention and detection of fraud and other iregularities.

The directors are responsible for the maintenance and integrity of the corporate and financial infermation on the
company's website. Legislation in the United ¥ingdom governing the preparation and dissemination of financial
statements rmay differ from legislation in other jurisdictions.

-10-



INFOBIP LIMITED
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT TO THE MEMBERS OF INFOBIP LIMITED
Opinion on the financial statements

in our opinion:

« the financial staterments give a true and fair view of the state of the Group's and of the Parent Company's affairs
as at 31 December 2021 and of the Group's loss for the year then ended;

« the financial statements have been properly prepared in accordance with United Kingdom Generally Accepted
Accounting Practice; and

« thefinancial statements have been prepared in accordance with the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

We have audited the financlal statements of Infobip Limited (the ‘Parent Company’) and its subsidiaties {the 'Group"}
for the year ended 31 December 2021 which comprise the group profit and loss account, group staternent of
comprehensive income, group and company bafance sheset, group and campany statement of changes in equity,
group statement of cash flows and noles to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting
poticies. The financial reporting framework that has been applied in their preparation is applicable law and United
Kingdom Accounting Standards, including Financial Reporting Standard 102 The Fimancial Reporting Standard
applicabie in the UK and Repubic of Ireland (United Kingdom Generally Accepted Accounting Practice).

Basis for opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Intemational Standards on Auditing (UK) (ISAs (UK)) and applicable law.
Cur responsibilifies under those standards are further described in the Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the
firancial statements section of our report. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis far aur opinion.

Independence

We remain independent of the Group and the Parent Company in accordance with the ethical requirements that are
relevant to our audit of the financial statements in the UK, including the FRC's Ethical Standard, and we have fulfilfed
our other ethical responsibilities in accardance with these requirements.

Conciusions relating to going concem

In auditing the financial statements, we have concluded that the Ditectors’ use of the going concem basis of
accourting in the preparation of the financial statements is appropriate.

Based on the work we have performed, we have not idertified any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that, individually or collectively, may cast significant doubt on the Group’s and Parent Company's ability to
continue as a going concem for a peried of at least twelve months from when the financial statements are authorised
for issue,

Our responsibilities and the responsibilities of the Directors with respect to going concern are described in the relevant
sections of this report.

Other information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the information included in
the annual report other than the financial statements and our auditor's repart thereon. Qur opinion on the financial
statements does not cover the other information and, except to the extent otherwise explicitly stated in our report, we
do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon. Our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the course of the audit, or otherwise appears fo be materially misstated. If we identify such
material inconsistencies of apparent material misstatemnents, we are required to determine whether this gives rise to
a malerial misstatement in the financial staternents themselves. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact.

We have nothing to report in this regard.
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INFOCBIP LIMITED
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

Other Compantes Act 2006 reporting
In our opinion, based on the work undertaken in the course of the audit:

» the infomation given in the strategic report and the Directors' report for the financial year for which the financial
statermnents are prepared Is consistent with the financial statements; and

+ the strategic report amd the Directors' report have been prepared in accerdance with applicable legal
requirements.

In the light of the knowledge and understanding of the Group and Parent Company and its environment obtained in
the course of the audit, we have not identified material misstatements in the strategic report or the Directors' report.

We have nothing to report in respect of the following matters in retation to which the Companies Act 2006 requires us
to report {0 you if, in our opinion:

« adeguate accounting records have not been kept by the Parent Company, or retums adequate for our audit have
not been received from branches not visited by us; or

+ the Parent Company financial statements are not in agresment with the accounting records and retums; or
certain disclosures of Directors’ remuneration specified by law are not made; or

+ we have not received all the information and explanations we require for aur audit.

Responsibilities of Directors

As explained more fully in the directors’ responsibilities staternent, the Directors are responsible for the preparation
of the firancial statements and for being satisfied that they give a true and fair view, and for such intemnal control as
the Directors detenmine is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements that are free from material
misstaternent, whether due fo fraud or error,

In preparing the financial statements, the Directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s and the Parent
Company's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concemn and
using the going concern basis of accounting unless the Directors either intend to liquidate the Group or the Parent
Company or to cease operations, or have no realistic altemative but to do so.

Auditor's responsibilities for the audit of the financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free from
material rnisstaternent, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor's report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
ISAs (UK) wilt always detect a matenal misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and
are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected te influence the
economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.

Extent to which the audit was capable of detecfing irregularities, including fraud

Iregularities, including fraud, are instances of non-compliance with laws and regulations. We design procedures in
line with our responsibilities, outlined above, to detect material misstatements in respect of imegularities, including
fraud. The extent to which our procedures are capable of detecting itreguiarities, including fraud is detaited below:

= We obtained an understanding of the legal and regulatory frameworks that are applicable to the Group and its
compeonents and defermined that the most significant frameworks, which are direcily relevant fo specific
assertions in the financial statements, are those that relate to the reporting framework, Companies Act 2008, data
privacy and the relevant tax compliance regulations.

+ We understood how the Group and Parent Company are complying with those frameworks by making enquiries
of management and those responsible for legal and compliance procedures. We corroborated our enquiries
through our review of board minutes and seeking specific representations in connection with internal compliance
procedures in significant jurisdictions.
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INFOBIP LIMITED
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

» We assessed the susceptibility of the Group and Parent Company's financial statements to materal
misstatemnent, including how fraud might occur, by meeting with management to understand where they
considered was a susceptibility to fraud.

¢ Cur audit planning identified fraud risks in relation to revenue recognition and management override of controls.
In respect of revenue the primary risks are perceived to relate to the existence of messages sent on behalf of
customers. We considered the processes and controls that the Group and Parent Company have established to
address risks identified, or that ctherwise prevent, deter and detect fraud and how management monitors those
processes and controls.

+  We rotated the scope of non-significant group components subject to testing to add unpredictability to our audit
procedures completed year on year.

¢ Wedeslgned our audit procedures to detect imegularities, including fraud. Our procedures included joumnal testing
of enfries, which met specific eriteria, festing the operating effectiveness of certain controls over the revenue
systemns, particularly assessing controls over the automated origination and fracking of messages sertt, enquiries
of in-house legal, compliance teams and group management and challenging the assumptions made by
management in their significant accounting estimates. Our audit procedures were desigred to provide reasonable
assurance that the financial statements were free from material fraud or error.

Our audit procedures were designed to respond to risks of material misstafement in the financial statements,
recoghising that the risk of not detecting a material misstatement due to fraud is higher than the risk of not detecting
ona resulting from eror, as fraud may involve deliberate concealment by, far example, forgery, misrepresentations or
through collusion. There are inherent limitations in the audit procedures performed and the further removed non-
compliance with jaws and regulations is from the events and transactions reflected in the financial statements, the
less likely we are to become aware of it.

A further description of our responsibilities is available on the Financial Reporing Courcil's website at:
www frc.org.uk/auditarsresponsibilities. This description forms part of our auditor’s report,

Use of our report

This report is matde solely to the Parent Comparty’s members, as a body, in accordance with Chapter 3 of Part 16 of
the Companies Act 2006. Our audit work has been undertaken so that we might state to the Parent Company’s
members those matters we are required o state to them in an auditor's report and for no other purpose. To the fullest
extent permitted by law, we do not accept or assume responsibility to anyone other than the Parent Company and
the Parent Company's members as a body, far our audit work, for this report, or for the opinions we have formed.

(—Fbwusmnedb‘y
F3493870 gus, N
Tom Lard L{ enior Statutory Auditor)
For and on behaif of BDO LLP, Statutory Auditor
London, UK

28 July 2022

BDO LLP is a limited liability partnership registered in England and Wales (with registered number OC305127).
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INFOBIP LIMITED
GROUP PROFIT AND LOSS ACCOUNT
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

2021 2020

Notes €000's €000's

Turnover ' 3 1,234,955 707,564
Cost of sales (960,836) {567,152)
Gross profit 254,119 140,412
Administrative expenses (273,514} {131,405}
Other operating income 2,080 926
Adjusted EBITDA* (17,315} 9,932
Depreciation and impairment (7,704) (5,592)
Amortisation {44,264) {12,251)
Exceptiona] items 4 {22,295} {1,687)

Separately reported items 4 (2,628) (12,099)

Operating loss 5 {24,206) (21,696)
Net interest payable and similar expenses 15,129 {58,754) {14,369)
Loss before taxation (152,960) {36,065}
Taxon loss . 8 (2,178) {2,048}
Loss for tha financial year {155,138} (38,113)

Loss for the financiai year is all attributable to the owners of the parent company.

*Adjusted EBITDA is a non-GAAP measure, being it is not a measure recognised or defined under UK GAAP. The
Directors consider that this measure may be helpfud to users of the financial statements. Adjusted EBITDA is eamings
before interest, tax, depreciation, impaiment, amortisation, foreign exchange gains and losses, exceptiona! and
separately reported items.

The notes on pages 21 to 54 form part of these financial statements.
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INFOBIP LIMITED
GROUP STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

2021 2020
€ 000's €000's
Loss for the year (155,138) (38,113)
Other comprehensive income
Cumency transiation differences 1,774 (3,281)
Taken to hedge reserve (4,430) -
Total comprehensive loss for the year (157,803) (41,394)

Total comprehensive income for the year is all atiributable to the owners of the parent company.

The notes on pages 21 to 54 forn part of these financial statements.
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INFORBIP LIMITED
GROUP BALANCE SHEET

AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2021

2021

Notes €000's
Fixed assets
Goodwill B
Other intangible assets ]
Total intangible assets
Tangible assets 10
Investments “
Total fixed assets
Current assets
Debtors 14 316,086
Cash at bank and in hand 323219
Total current assets 639,308
Crediters: amounts falling due
within one year 15 {305,393)

Net current assets
Total assefs less current liabilities

Preference shares treated as labilities
Long term creditors

Creditors: amounts falling due
after more than one year

Net assets

Capital and reserves

Called up share capital 12
Share premium accournt

Foreign exchange reserve

Share repurchase reserve

Hedging reserve

Merger reserve

Profit and loss reserves

Total equity

2020
€000's €000's €000's
218,508 223,622
20,261 32,492
247,769 256,114
50,180 40,994
424 95
298,373 297,203
256,208
78,250
334,458
(201,625)

333912 42,833
632,285 340,036
(355,553) {305,956)
421,958) (13.161)

@77,511) {318,117}
(145,226) 20,919
84,576 85,009
3,607 2,041
(3,002) (4,776)
(9,475) -
{4,439) -
(1,502) (1,502)
(214, 991) (59,853)

(145,226)

20,9198
financial statements were approved by the board of directors and authorised for issue on .. ] J}{

at® signed on its behalf by:

5 Kutic
. Director

\./ The notes on pages 21 to 54 form part of these financial statements.
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INFOBIP LIMITED
COMPANY BALANCE SHEET
AS AT 31 DECEMBER 2021

2021

Notes €000's
Fixed assets
Goodwill 9
Other intangible assets [:]
Total intangible assets
Tangible assets 10
Investments 11
Total fixed assets
Current assets
Debtors 14 250,319
Cash at bank and in hand 6,521
Total current assets 256,840
Creditors: amounts falling
due within one year 15 (344.439)

Net current (liabilities) / assets

Total assets less current

liabilities

Preference shares treated as liabilities
Long term creditors 16

Creditors: amounts falling due
after more than one year

Net assets

Capital and reserves

Called up share capfial 18
Share premium account

Share repurchase reserve

Profit and loss reserves

Total equity

€000's

7
7

1,018
329,912

330,937

(87,599)

243,338

(355,553)

(355,553}

(112,215)

84,576
3,607
(9.475)
(190,923)

(112,215)

2020
€000's

164,055
44,013

208,068

(165,883)

€000's

1,623
278,041

279,669

42,185

321,854

(305,956)
(1,656}

(307,612)

14,242

85,009
2,041

(72,808)

14,242

As permitfed by s40B Companies Act 2006, the company has not presented its own profit and loss accourd and

refated nptes. The company’s loss for the year was €118,115,000 (2020: €38,798 .000).
The finghcial statements were approved by the board of directors and autherised for issue on .

are sig on its behalf by:

Digector
/S
.._Fompany Registration No. 07085757

The notes on pages 21 to 54 form part of these financial statements,
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INFOBIP LIMITED

COMPANY STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER, 2021

Balance at 1 January

2020

Year ended 34
December 2020;
‘Total comprehensive
{oss for the year

Baiance at 31
Decermber 2020

Year ended 31
December 2021:

Total comprehensive
Ioss for the year

Class O shares issue
Shares Buyback

Reclassification of
shares repurchase

Balance at 31
December 2021

Share

Share

Share M Profit and Total

- premium repurchase ©
capital account reserve loss reserves

€000's €000's €000's €000's €000's

85,009 2,041 - (34,010) 53,040

- - - (38,788) (38,798)

85,009 2,041 - {T2,808) 14,242

- N - (118,11%) (118,115)

92 4,566 - - 1,658

- - (10,000) - {10,000)

(525) - 525 - -

84,576 3,607 {9,475) (190,923) (112,215}

The notes on pages 21 to 54 fonm part of these financial statements.
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INFOBIP LIMITED
GROUP STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

2021
€000's

(Loss) for the year after tax

Adjustrnents for:

Taxation charged

Finance costs

nvestment income

Amortisation of intangible assets
Depreciation of tangible fixed assets
Foreign exchange losses

Movement in working capital:
increase/decrease in debtors
Increase/decrease in creditors

Cash {outflow)/generated from
operations

Interest paid
Other investment income received
Income taxes paid

Net cash inflow from operating activities

Investing activities

Purchase of intangible assets (324)
Purchase of tangible fixed assets (16,906}
Purchase of fixed asset investments (352)
Proceads on disposal of tangible fixed asset 1,017
Proceeds on disposal of fixed asset 3
Interest received 96
Acquisition of a subsidiary, net of cash (19,627

Net cash used in investing activities

Finanging activities

Decrease in shorf term borrowings
Increase in long term bomowings

Net proceedings from preference shares
Repurchase of shares

Net cash used in financing activities

Net increase in cash and cash

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of
year

Effect of foreign exchange rates

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

The notes on pages 21 to 54 form part of these financial statements.

€000's

{155,138)

2,178
50,180
{426)
44,264
7,703
2,628

(49,822)
32,916

(56,517)

(7.480)
329
(3.688)

(67,538)

{36,003)

(51,197)
407,950

{10,000}
346,753

243124

78,250
1,845

323,219

2020

€000's

(222)
{18.077)

279
116
7)

(243.615)

€000's

(38,113)

2,048
14,624
(255)
12,251
5,502
12,008

{20,759)
10,612

(1,902)

(1.899)
326
(346)

(3.921)

(262,590}

485
7,509
293331

301,325

34,814

46,108
(2,672)

78,250
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INFOBIP LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

1

1.1

1.2

Accounting policies

Company information

Infobip Limited (“the compary™) is a private limited company limited by shares, domiciled and incorporated in
England and Wales. The registered office is Sth Floor, 35-38 New Bridge Street, London, United Kingdom EC4V
6BW.

The group consists of nfobip Limited and all of its subsidiaries.

Accounting convention
These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with FRS 102 “The Financial Reporting Standard
applicable in the UK and Republic of Ireiand” (“FRS 102") and the requirements of the Companies Act 2006.

The fimancial statements are prepared in euros ("€"), which is the functional currency of the company. Monetary
amounts in these financial statements are rounded to the nearest thousand €.

The financial statements have been prepared under the historical cost convention. The principal accounting
poficies adopted are set out below,

Parent company disclosure exemptions

In preparing the separate finarcial statements of the parert company, advantage has been taken of the
following disclosure exemptions available in FRS 102:

. Only one reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding at the beginning and end of the period
has been presented as the reconciliations for the group and the parent company would be identical;

. Neo income statement nor statement of comprehensive income has been prepared for the parent
company,

. No cash fiow staternent has been prepared for the parent company;

. Disclosures In respect of the parert compary's financial instruments and share-based payment
arrangements have not been presented as equivalent disclosures have been provided in respect of
the group as a whole; and

- No disclosure has been given for the aggregate remuneration of the key management personnel of
the parent company as their remuneration is included in the totals for the group as a whole.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incomorate those of infobip Limited and all of its subsidiaries (je entities
that the group contrels through its power to govem the financial and operating policies so as to obtain economic
benefits).

In the group and parent company financial statements, where acquisitions accounting is adopted, the cost of a
business combination is the fair value at the acquisition date of the assets given, equity instruments issued and
liabilties incumed or assumed, plus costs directiy aftributable to the business combination. The excess of the
cost of a business combination over the fair value of the identifiable assets, liabilities and contingent liabilities
acquired is recognised as goodwill. Provisioral fair values recognised for business combinations in previous
pericds are adjusted retrospectively for final fair values determined in the 12 morths following the acguisiion
date.

Deferred tax is recognised on differences between the value of assets (other than goodwill) and liabilities
recognised in a business combination accounted for using the purchase method and the amourts that can be
deducted or assessed for tax, considering the manner in which the canying amount of the asset or jability is
expected to be recovered or seftled.
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INFOBIP LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

1

Accounting policies

1.2 Basis of consolidation {continued)

1.3

1.4

All financial statements are made up to 31 December 2021. Where necessary, adjustments are made to the
financial statements of subsidiaries to bring the accounting policies used into line with those used by other
members of the group.

Ali infra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains on transactions between group companies are
eliminated on consalidation. Unrealised losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence of
an impairment of the asset transferred.

Merger accounting
A number of subsidiaries acquired during 2019 are consoclidated using the merger accounting method. Their
resuits have been incorporated as if they were atways in the group.

Compatel Limited and its underiying subsldiaries, and Infobip Singapore were included in the group financial
statements for 2019 using the merger accounting method.

Going concemn
The Directors have assessed the ability of the group and company to continue o operate as a going concemn.
To support this assessment forecasts covering the period to the end of December 2023 have been prepared.
These forecasts represent management’s best estimate of future trading performance based on expectations
and commitments made at the time of signing the financial statements.

During the year, the Group bormowed $500m from its bankers. The financial statements show bank loan of
€429m. The loan is repayabie in September 2026, out of which €4m falling due for repayment within one year
of the reporting date. The loans accrue interest at a variable rate equivalent to 3m USD LIBOR plus 6.25%.
Issue costs of €19m were incurred, which have been deducted from the initial cartying value and will be charged
to profit or loss as part of the interest charge calculated using the effective interest rate method. The cash for
this loan was received net of the issue costs. In 2021 €1m of ioan issue costs was amortised till the year end.
The group has entered into variable to fixed rate interest swaps to manage its exposure fo interest rate cash
flow risk on its variable rate debt.

The Directors have sensitised the farecasts and considered the extent to which predicted revenues would need
to fall to prevent the business from having sufficient cash reserves o repay the loan facility. The Directors have
also considered cases that reflected the acquisition of Peerless Networks. In the opinion of the Directors the
downside sensitivity required to reduce the cash headrooim te Zero is too extreme and not reasonably
foreseeable. The Directors have considered impact of Russian Ukraine conflict on business. As a part of these
analysis worst case scenario is also taken into consideration where no revenue would be generated from April
2022 while some operating expenses will continue to be incurred. As a result, impact on 2022 would be 4%
revenue gap vs. budget and 1.5% gross profit gap. Because of negative EBITDA coming from Russia and
Ulraine combined business, with adequale managing operating cost base, EBITDA impact could be even
favourable on the consolidated group. For that reason the Directors are satisfied it is appropriate to adopt the
going concem basis of accounting in the preparation of the financial statements.
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INFOBIP LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

1.5

1.6

1.7

1.8

Accounting palicies

Tumover
Tumover is recognised at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable for goods and services
provided in the normal course of business, and is shown net of VAT and other sales related taxes.

Tumover consists of charges collected for processing SMS messages sent by Infobip clients on the Infobip cloud
commupications platform. “Processing” includes receiving, routing and submitting SMS messages for delivery to
a mobile operator, who detivers the SMS message to a mobile phone of an individual user (mobile subscriber),
who has opted into receiving SMS messages from the Infobip client. An Infobip ciient can be a bank, online
enlefprise, social media company, or any ofher corporate entity that runs communication and engagement
programs over mobile phones, of performs mobile phone-based authentication and security procedures on a
globally distributed user base.

Revenue is recognised in the accounting period in which SMS messages have been delivered to a mobite phone
of an individual user.

Revenue frem Software as a Service (Saa8) is recognised as subscription revenue on a straight-ine basis over
the specific period for which service is agreed, while deferring the remaining reveriue, usually on a monthly basis.

Research and development expenditure
Research expenditure is written off against profits in the year in which it is incurred.

Intangible fixed assets - goodwill

Goodwill represents the excess of the cost of acquisition of a business over the fair value of net assets acquired.
It is initially recognised as an asset at cost and is subsequently measured at cost less accumuiated amortisation
and accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is considered to have a finite useful life and is amortised on a
systematic basis over its expected life, which is 6 years.

For the purposes of impainnent testing, goodwill is alocated to the cash-generating units expected to benefit from
the acquisition. Cash-generating units to which goodwill has been allocated are tested for impairmment at least
annually, or more frequently when there is an indication that the unit may be impaired. If the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit is less than the canying amount of the unit, the impairment toss is allocated first to
reduce the canying amount of any goadwill altocated to the unit and then to the other assets of the unit pro-rata
on the basis of the carrying amount of each asset in the unit.

Intangible fixed assets other than goodwill
Intangible assets acquired separately from a business are recognised at cost and are subsequently measured at
cost less accumuiated amortisation and accumutated impairment losses.

Intangible assets acquired on business combinations are recogniced separately from goodwill at the acquisition
date where it is prebable that the expected future economic benefits that are attributable to the asset will flow to
the entity and the fair value of the asset can be measured reliably; the intangible asset arises from contractual or
other legal rights; and the intangible asset is separabie from the entity.

Amortisation is recognised so as to write off the cost or valuation of assets less their residual values aver their
useful lives on the following bases:

Licences, domains and computer programmes  Straight line over 3 years

Brand Straight line over 6 years
Technology Straight line over 6 years
Trade names Straight line over 10 years
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INFOBIP LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

1.8

1.10

1.12

Accounting policies

Tangible fixed assets
Tangible fixed assets are initiaily measured at cost and subsequently measured at cost or valuation, net of

depreciation and any impairment losses.

Depreciation is recognised sa as to write off the cost or valuation of assets less their residual values over their
useful lives on the following bases:

Computer equipment Straight line over 3 years
Furniture and fittings Straight line over 5 years
Office and other equipment Straight line over 5 years
Servers Straight line over 4 years
Property and equipment Straight line over 50 years

The gain or loss arising on the disposal of an asset is determined as the difference between the sale proceeds
and the carmrying value of the asset, and is recognised in the profit and loss account,

Fixed asset investments
In the parert company financial statements, investments in subsidiaries are initially measured at cost and
subsequently measured at cost jess any accumuwated impaiment fosses.

A subsidiary is an entity controlled by the group. Control is the power to govern the financial and operating
policies of the entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities.

Impairment of fixed assets

At each reporting peried end date, the group reviews the carmying amounts of its tangible and intangible agsets
to determine whether there is any indicatfon that those assets have suffered an impairment loss. |f any such
indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the
impaiment loss (if any). Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual asset, the
company estirmates the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less coste to self and value in use. |n assessing value in use,
the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that refiects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks specific to the asset for which the
estimates of future cash flows have not been adjusted.

if the recoverable ameunt of an asset {or cash-generating unit}) is estimated to be less than its canying amount,
the canying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit) is reduced to its recoverable amount. An impairment
loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at 2 revalued amount, in
which case the impaimment loss is treated as a revaluation decreage.

Recognised impairment losses are reversed if, and only if, the reasons for the impairment loss have ceased to
apply. Where an impainment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of the asset {or cash-generating
unit) is increased to the revised estimate of its recaverable amount, but so that the increased camying amount
does not exceed the carrying amount that would have been deteriined had ne impaimert loss been
recoghised for the asset (or cash-generating unit) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss, unless the relevant asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case the reversal
of the impairment loss is treated as a revaluation increase.

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents are basic fingncial assets and inciude cashin hand, deposits held at call with banks,
other shortterm liguid investments with original maturities of three months or less, and bank overdrafls. Bank

overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current fiabilities.
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1.13

Accounting policies

Financial instruments
The group has elected to apply the provisions of Section 11 'Basic Financial Instruments’ and Section 12 'Other
Financial Instruments ssues' of FRS 102 to al! of its financial instuments.

Financial instruments are recognised in the group’s balance sheet when the graup bhecomes party to the
contractual provisions of tite instrument.

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the nef amounts presented in the fimancial statements when there
is 2 fegally enforceable right to set off the recognised amounts and there is an intention o seftle on a net basis
or fo realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Basic financial assets

Basic financial assets, which include debtors and cash and bank balances, are initially measured at fransaction
price including transaction costs and are subsequently carried at amortised cost using the effective interest
method uniess the amangement constitutes a financing transaction, where the transaction is measured at the
present value of the future receipts discounted at @ market rate of interest. Financial assets classified as
receivable within one year are not amortised.

Impairment of financial assets
Financial assets are assessed for indicators of impaimment at each reporting end date,

Fimancial assets are impaired where there is objective evidence that, as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the financial asset, the estimated fture cash flows have been affected.
If an asset is impaired, the impaiment less is the difference between the carnrying amount and the present value
of the estimatad cash flows discounted at the asset's original effective interest rate, The impaimment loss is
recogrised in profit or loss.

If there is a decrease in the impaiment loss arising from an event occurting after the impairment was
recognised, the impairment is reversed. The reversal is such that the current canying amount does not exceed
what the carrying amount would have been, had the impairment not previously been recognised, The
impairment reversal is recoghised in profit or loss.

Derecognition of financial assets

Financial assets are derecognised only when the contractual rights te the cash flows from the asset expire or
are settled, or when the group transfers the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership to another ertity, or if some significant risks and rewards of ownership are retained but confrol of the:
asset has fransferred to another party that is able to sell the asset in its entirety fo an urrelated third party.

Classification of financial liabilities

Financial Fabiiities and equity instruments are classified according to the substance of the contractual
amangements entered into. An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets
of the group after deducting all of its liabilities.
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Accounting policies
Financial instruments (continued)

Basic financial liabilities

Basic financia! liabilities, including creditors, bank loans, loans from fellow group companies and preference
shares that are classified as debt, are initially recognised at transaction price unless the amangement
constitutes a financing transaction, where the debt instrument is measured at the present value of the future
patymentr!tsi sd;zcounted at a market rate of interest. Financial liabilties classified as payable within one year are
not amo .

Debt instruments are subsequently carded at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate methed.

Trade creditors are obligations to pay for goods or services that have been acquired In the ordinary course of
business from suppliers. Amounts payable are classified as curent liabilities if payment is due within one year
or less. If not, they are presented as non-current fiabitities, Trade creditors are recognised initially at transaction
price and subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

DPerecognition of financial fiabilities
Financial liabilities are derecognised when the group's contractual obligations expire or are discharged or
cancelled

Hedge accounting

The group has entered into variable to fixed rate interest swaps to manage its exposure fo interest rate cash
flow risk on its variable rate debt. These derivatives are measured at fair vafue at each reporting date. To the
extent the hedge ig effective, movements in fair value are recognised in other comprehensive income and
presented in a separate cash flow hedge reserve. This amount is reclassified from the cash flow hedge reserve
to profit or loss in the same period or periods during which the hedged expected future cash flows affect profit
or loss. Any ineffective partions of those movements are recognised in profit or loss for the peried.

Amounts charged or credited to the cash flow hedge reserve are treated for tax purposes as undeductible.

Equity instruments

Equity instruments issued by the group are recorded at the proceeds received, net of transaction costs.
Dividends payable on equity instruments are recognised as llabilities once they are no longer at the discretion
of the group.

The Greup shall recognise the issue of shares or other equify instruments as equity when i issues those
instruments and another party is obliged to provide cash or other resources to the entity in exchange for the
instruments

A preference share that provides for mandatory redemption by the Group for a fixed or determinable amount at
a fixed or determinable future dale, or gives the holder the right to require the Group as issuer to redeer the
instrument at or after a particular date for a fixed or determinable amount, is a financial fiability.

Taxation
The tax expense represenis the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax.

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from net profit as reported
in the profit and logs account because it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in
other years and it futher excludes tems that are never taxable or deductible. The group's liability for curent
tax is calcutated using tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the reporting end date.
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1.15

1.16

117

118

Accounting policies
Taxation (continued)

Deferred tax

Defemred lax fabilities are generally recognised for all timing differences and deferred tax assels are recognised to
the extent that it is probable that they will be recovered against the reversal of defered tax Habilities or other future
taxable profits. Such assets and liabilities are not recognised if the timing difference arises from goodwill or from
the inifial recognition of other assets and liabifties in a transaction that affects neither the tax profit nor the
accourting profit.

Deferred tax balances are not recognised in respect of permanent differences except in respect of business
combinations, when deferred fax is recognised on 1) the difference between the fair values of assels acquired and
the future tax deductions avaitable for them, and 2} the differences between the fair values of liabilities acquired and
the amount that will be assessed for tax. Deferred tax is determined using tax rates and laws that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the reporting date.

The canying amount of deferred tax assels is raviewed at each reporting end date and reduced to the extent that it
is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be available to allow alt or part of the asset to be recovered.
Deferred tax Is calculated at the tax rates that are expected to apply in the period when the liability is settled or the
assel is realised. Deferred tax is chasged or credited in the profit and loss account, except when if relates to tems
charged or credited directiy to equity, in which case the deferred tax is also dealt with in equity. Deferred tax assefs
and liabilities are offset if, and only if, there is a legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets and liabilities
and the deferred tax assets and liabilities relate to taxes levied by the same tax authority.

Employee benefits
The costs of short-terrn employee benefits are recognised as a kability and an expense, unless those costs are
required to be recognised as part of the cost of stock or fixed assets.

The cost of any unused holiday entiflement is recognised in the pericd in which the employee’s services are
received,

Termination benefits are recognised immediately as an expense when the company is demonstrably committed to
terminate the employment of an employee or to provide termination benefits.

Retirement benefits
Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit schemes are charged as an expense as they fzll due.

Share-based payments

Where share options are awarded fo employees, the fair value of the options at the date of grant is charged to profit
or loss over the vesting period. Non-market vesting conditions are taken into account by adjusting the number of
equity instruments expected to vest at each balance sheet date so that, ultimately, the cumulative amount
recognised over the vesting period is based on the number of options that eventually vest. Market vesting conditicns
are factored into the fair value of the options granted. The cumulative expense is not adjusted for failure to achieve
a rarket vesting condition.

The fair value of the award also takes info account non-vesting conditions. These are either factors beyond the
controf of either party {(such as a target based on an index) or factors which are within the controi of one or other of
the parties {(such as the company keeping the scheme open or the employee maintaining any confributions required
by the scheme).

Where the terms and conditions of options are modified before they vest, the increase in the fair value of the options,
measured immediately before and after the modification, is also charged to profit or loss over the remaining vesting
period.
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1.20

Accounting policies
Foreign exchange

(@) Functional and presentation curmency

Iterns included in the financial statements of each of the group’s entities are measured using-the currency of the
primary economic envirenment in which the entity operates (‘the functional currency’). The consolidated financial
staterments are presented in ‘euros’, which is the company's functional and the group's presentation currency.

On consolidation, the results of overseas operations are transiated into eurcs at rates approximating te those ruling
when the transactions took place. All assets and liabllities of overseas operations are translated at the rate ruling at
the reporting date, including any goodwill in relation to that entity. Exchange differences arising on translating the
opening net assets at opening rate and the resuits of overseas operafions at aciual rate are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

{b) Transactions and batarnces

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the group entity’s functional curreney using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the fransactions. Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of such
transactions and from the transiation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities denominated in
foreign cummencies are recognised in profit or loss.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings and ¢ash and cash equivalents are presented in profit
or loss within ‘Net financial result'. All other foreign exchange gains and losses are presented in profit or ioss within
'Net financial resuit’.

Exceptional items

lterns that are deemed material in size and non-operating, non-recurring in nature or incurred solely as a resuit of
the Group's ownership struciure are presented as exceptional items in the Consolidated Statemnent of
Comprehensive Income. The directors are of the opinion that the separate reporting of these items provides a better
understanding of the underlying performance of the Group. Events which may give rise to classification of itams as
exceptional inciude equity raising, acquisitions, finance transformation and sales of financial assets expenses.
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2 Judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

The key assumpfions conceming the future and other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting
date, that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounis of assets and
fiabilities within the next financial year, are described below. Existing circumstances and assumptions about
future developments, however, may change due to market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond
the control of the Group. Such changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

Identification and valuation of the intangibles in business combinations

Al the acquisition date of a business combination, the Group recognises, separately from goodwill, the
identifiable assets acquired, the Fabilities assumed and any non-controliing interest in the acquire. The Group
measures identifizble assets acquired and the liabilities assumed at thelr acquisition-date fair value. The fair
value of intangibles in business combination is subject to certain assumptions made in deriving its value such
as discount rate used in the discounted cash fiow (DCF) modei, expected castHnflows and growth rate used.
The Group based its assumptions and estimates on parameters available when the consolidated financiai
statements were prepared.

Share-based payments

Estimating fair value for share-based payment transactions requires determination of the most appropriate
valuation model, which depends on the tenms and conditions of the grant. This estimate also requires
determination of the most appropriate inputs 10 the valuation model including the expected life of the share
option or appreciation right, volatility and dividend yield and making assumptions about them.

Fair value of share options granted are estimated to be €12.49 to €14 .39 per option based on weighted average
of different exit scenarios (PO shor tenm, 1PQ fong termn, sale) using Black Scholes modet and volatility based
on historical volatilities of selected guideline public companies and expected term of options between 2.8 to
5.6 years. Due to current market conditions, timing of potential vesting event is uncertain and not expected
within 12 months from the balance sheet date.

impairment of non-financial assets

identification of cash generating units involves significant judgement. During this process the management
considered various factors, including how they monitor the entity's operations and how they make decisions
about continuing or disposing the entity’s assets and operations. It was concluded that Infobip Group forms
one cash generating unit. Differences in facts and circumstances could result in different conclusions being
reached. Impairment exists when the camrying value of an asset ar cash generating unit exceeds fts recoverable
arnount, which is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and ifs value in use. The fair value less costs
of disposal calculation is based on available data from binding sales transactions, conducted at arm’s length,
for similar assels or observable market prices less incremental costs for dispesing of the asset. The value in
use calculation is based on a DCF model. The cash flows are derived from the budget for the next five years
and do not include restructuring activities that the Group is not yet committed to or significant future investments
that will enhance the asset's performance. The recoverable amourt is sensitive to the discount rate used for
the DCF model as well as the expected future cash-inflows and the growth rate used for extrapolation purposes.
These estitpates are most relevant to gaodwill, techinotogy and brand recognized by the Group,

Fair value measurement

Management uses vaiuation techniques to determine the fair value of financial instruments, where aclive
market quotes are not availabie. This involves developing estimates and assumptions consistent with how
market participants would price the instrument or asset. Management bases its assumptions on observable
data as far as possible, but this is not always available. In that case management uses the best information
available and a degree of judgement is required in establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations
of inputs such as liquidity risk, credit risk and volatility, Changes in assumptions refating to these factors could
affect the reported fair value of financial instruments. Estimated fair vatues may vary from the actual prices.

Fair value measuremenrt was applied to inferest rate swap. The total value of this instrument was €4 438,771
as at 31 December 2021. Refer {o Note 13 for more defails.

Taxes

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses {o the extent that it is probable that taxable profit
will be available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management judgerment s required to
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determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the
level of future taxable profits, logether with future tax planning slrategies.

The Group has € 125 825 thousands of tax losses camied forward. These losses relate to subsidraries that
have a history of losses, do not expire, and may not be used to offset taxable income etsewhere in the Group.
The subsidiaries neither have any taxable temporary difference nor any tax planning opportunities available
that could patily support the recognition of these losses as deferred tax assets. On this basis, the Group has
determined that it cannot recognise deferred tax assets on the tax losses carried forward.

If the Group was able to recognise all unrecognised deferred tax assets, profit and equity would have
increased by €13,713 thousands.
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3 Tumover and other revenue

An analysis by geographical area of the group's tumover is set out as below:

2021 2020
€000's €000's
Tumover analysed by geographical market
United Kingdom 630,641 435,281
Rest of Europe 37,351 67,351
Rest of \Wortd 546963 204,932
1,214,955 Yo7,564
4 Exceptional and separately reported items
2021 2020
€ 000's €000's
Exceptional items
One-off bonuses 7,998 -
Equity raising expenses - 488
integration expenses 5,829 96
Transformation expenses 5,708 -
Acquisitions expenses 2,338 875
Costs of raising finance 424 228
22,295 1,687
Separately reported items
Foreign exchange losses 2,628 12,059
2,628 12,098
Exceptional and separately reported items 24,823 13,786

Acquisition expenees relate to expenses related to potential/planned acquisitions, post acquisition integration and

potential acquisitions not undertaken by the Group.

Infobip had incurred some one-off costs related to transformation and integration of acquired companies, and also
some costs related to loan facility renewad in 2021 (the facility was renewed and fully repaid in 2021) and for signing

RBI Master Factoring Agreemarnt in 2020.
Equity raising expenses relate to costs attributable to a share repurchase.

One-off bonuses relate to bonuses and commissions paid out in 2021 relating to 2020 result as result of subsequent

managerment decision in 2021,

§ Operating loss

Cperating loss for the year is stated after charging:

Exceptional and separately reported itemns
Depreciation of owned tangible fixed assets
Amaortisation of intangible assets

Research and deveiopment costs

Defined contribution pension expense
Operating lease charges

2021
€000's

24,923
7.708
44,954
55,343
12,008
7.715

2020
€ 000's

13,786
5592
12,251
22,647
7814
8326
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-3 Auditor's remuneration

Fees payable to the company's auditor and asscciates:

For audit services

Audit of the financial statements of the group and company
Audit of the financial statements of the company’s subsidiaries

7 Empiloyees

2024
€000's

2020
€00C's

The average monthly number of persens (inciuding directors) employed by the group and company during the

year was:

Sales
Support
Development

Total

Their aggregate remuneration comprised:

Wages and salaries
Social sectirity costs
Pension costs

Diractors' remuneration has been disclosed in note 21.
8 Taxation

Current tax

UK corporation tax on prefits for the curment period

Foreign curent tax on profits for the current period

Cther foreign taxes

Total current tax charge for the year

Group Company
2021 2020 2024 2020
Number Number Number Number
993 907 3 19
1,243 815 12 5
943 595 3 -
3,179 2,317 45 24

Group Company
2021 2020 2021 2020
€000's €000's €000's €000's
147,670 58,014 3,057 1,125
27,086 14,190 2,066 649
12,098 7.914 206 75
186,854 80,118 57328 1,849
2021 2020
€000's €000's
- 16
5,554 2,051
- 1

5,554

2,088
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8  Taxation (continued)

2021 2020
€ 000’s €000's

Deferred tax
Origination and reversal of timing differences (3,376} (20
Total fax eharge for the year 2178 2,048

The actual charge for the year can be reconciled to the expected credit for the year based on the profit or loss
and the standard rate of tax as follows:

2021 2020

€000's €000's

(Loss)profit before taxation (152,960) (38,113)
Expected tax charge based on the standard rate of corporation tax in the

UK of 19% (2020: 18%) (29,062) (7,241)

UK corporation tax on profits for the current period - 16

Tax effect of expehses that are not deductible in determining taxable profit 17,969 780

Tax effect of unrecognised iax iosses 13,713 -

{Lower)Higher taxes on overseas eamings {442} 8,493

Tax expense for the year 2,178 2,048

Tax effect of expenses that are not deductible in determining taxable profits mainly relates to goodwill amortisation
and interest on preference shares. The Group has tax losses that arose in various tax jurisdiction of €125,825
thousand that are available indefinitely for offsetting against future taxsble profits of the companies in which the
losses arose.

Defarred fax assets have nof been recognised in respect of these losses as they may not be used to offset taxable
profits elsewhere in the Group. The subsidiaries have been logs-making for some time without any positive outliock
for future taxabie profits, and there are no other tax planning opportunities or other evidence of recoverability in the
near futuce. Uf the Group was able to recognise all unrecognised deferred tax assets, the profit would increase by
€13, 713 thousand.
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9 Intangible fixad assets

Group Goodwil] Licences, Brand and  Technology Total
domains and  Trade name
computer
programs

€000's € p00's € 000's €000's €000's
Cost
At 1 January 2021 250,862 13,114 33,850 27,982 325,808
Additions as part of business
combination 35619 - 900 - 325519
Additions - 277 47 - 324
Disposais - (1} - - 1)
Transfer from / to - {938 - - {938)
Exchange adjustments - (135} - - (135)
At 31 December 2021 286 481 12,317 34,797 27,982 361,577
Amortisation and impairment
At 1 January 2021 27,240 11,635 2,837 27,982 68,694
Amortisation charged for the
year 40,733 370 3,161 - 44 764
Disposals - - - - -
Transfer from / to “ {151) - - {151)
Exchange adjustments - 1 - - 1
At 31 December 2024 67,973 11,855 5,988 27,982 113,808

Carrying amount
At 31 December 2021 218,508 462 28,799 - 247 768

At 31 December 2020 273,622 1,479 31,013 . 256,114
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8  Intangible fixed assets (continued)

Company Gaodwill Licences, Brand Technology Total
dotmains and
computer
programs
€ 000's €000's € 000's €000's €000's
Cost
At 1 January 20271 27,240 10,989 2,837 27,982 69,048
Additions - 49 . - 49
At 31 December 2021 27,240 11,038 2,837 27,982 69,097
Amortisation and impairment
At 1 January 2021 27,240 10,984 23837 27 982 69,043
Amortisation charged for the
year R a7 ) . A7
At 31 December 2021 27,240 11,031 2,837 27,982 69,090
Carrying amount
At 31 December 2021 - 7 - - 7
At 31 December 2020 - 5 - - 5

Goodwill is tested for impairment annually or when there are indications that an impairment loss has occurred. The
Group considered the following indicators of possible impainment: overal] decline in the market vatue of technology
seclor companies, increase In interest rates and net loss position of the Group throughout the year 2021, The
impaiment testing was performed as at 31 December 2021, The Company has deterrnined that it operates as one
cash-generating unit (CGU), The recoverable amount for a CGU is determined based on its estimated value in use.
These estimates are based on cash flow projections, which are based on finarcial budgets approved by the
management covering a three-year period. In the assessrment of future cash flows assumptions are made, primanly
concerning sales growth and discount rate (WACC). WACC is based on a peer group of similar listed entities. The
estimated growth rate and the forecast operating margin are based on the company's budgets and forecasts for the
Group.

The 3% growth rate after the forecast period coincides with the Group's long-term assumptions about inflation and
long-term rmarket growth, The 11.82% pre-tax discount rate reflects courtry-specific risks associated with the Group
operations. The management has determined that the CGU can mainly be categorized as in a growth phase but with
strong and stable cash flows based on existing husiness relationships. The CGU is characterized by its continuous
development of new services that complerent the current business.

Based onthe calculations referred to above, it has been concluded that the recoverable amount exceeds the camying
amount of the CGU. No goodwill impairment charge was recognized in relation to any period presented.
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10 Tangible fixed assets

Group Assets under Computer Furniture and Servers Property and Total
[ __tonstruction  equipment fittings Equipment

€000’'s  €000's €000's € 000's €000's  €000's
Cost
At 1 January 2021 16,693 12,522 3,238 13,348 14,187 60,188
Additions-business Co .
combination - 97 15 _ 37 149
Additions -~ 11,395 1,835 386 1,776 1514 16,906
Dispasals (873) (264) (351} 7] (225} {1,790}
Ttansfers (24,725} (3,569) 1,341 5,703 22,187 937
Exchange adjustments (47) 622 426 136 {790 347
At 31 Decamber 2021 2,643 11,243 5,055 20,886 38,910 76,737
Depreciation and
impaiment
At 1 January 2021 - 5,386 1,718 9,902 2188 19,194
Depreciation charged in
the year - 2,259 949 3,360 1,135 7,703
Eliminated in respect of
disposals - (218) (324) 7N (154) (773)
Transfers - (1,114) 34) 1,182 117 151
Exchange adjustments - 154 H 114 an 282
Af 31 December 2021 - 6,467 2,400 14,481 3,208 26,557

Carrying amount
At 31 December 2021 2643 4,776 2,655 6,405 33,701 50,180

At 31 December 2020
16,893 7,136 1,520 3446 11,899 40,994
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10 Tangible fixed assets (continued)

Company

Cost

At 1 January 2021
Additions
Disposals

At 31 December 2021

Depreciation and impairment
At 1 January 2021

Depreciation charged in the year
Eliminated in respect of disposals

At 31 December 2021

Carrying amount
At 31 December 2021

At 31 December 2020

11 Fixed asset investments

Investments in subsidiaries
Unlisted investments

Movements in fixed asset investments
Group

Cost or valuation

At 1 January 2021
Additions

Disposals

At 31 December 2021

Carnrying amount
At 31 December 2021

At 31 December 2020

Notes

12

Computer Fumiture and Servers Total
equipment fittings
€000's €000's €000's €000's
318 134 8,781 10,233
117 - 373 490
- - (77) 77
435 134 10,077 10,646
295 134 8,181 8,510
58 - 1,037 1,095
- - 77 {0
353 134 8,14 9,628
8 - 935 1,018
23 - 1,600 1623
Group Company
2021 2020 2021 2020
€000's € 000's €000's €000°s
- - 329573 278,041
424 96 339 -
424 @5 328,912 278,041
Shares in Other Total
group investments
undertakings other than
loans
€000's €000's €000's
- o5 95
- 353 353
- (24) (24
. 424 424
- 424 424
- 95 95
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11 Fixed asset investments (continued)

Movements in fixed asset investments
Company

Cost or valuation
At 1 January 2021
Additions
Impairment

At 31 December 2021

Carrying amount
At 31 December 2021

At 31 December 2020

During 2021 the Company acquired ANAM Group for consideration of €40m.

Sharaes in
group
undertakings

€000's

278,041
51,532

329,573

329,573

278,041

Also, the Company has increased its investment in Group companies: Infobip Croatia and Infobip Bangiladesh and
has founded four new entities: Infobip Netherlands, Infobip Qatar, infobip Austria and Infobip Portugal.
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12 Subsidiaries

Details of the company’s subsidiaries, all of which are wholly owned, either directly or indirectly, at 31 December

2021 are as follows:

Name of undertaking

Country of incorporation

Subsidiary address

Infobip SRL italy Piazza Sicilia 6, 20146 Milaho

Marcelo Torcuate de Aivear 636, Pisc 8°,

C1058AAH Ciudad Autonoma de Buencs
Infobip Latam S.A. Argentina Aires

'BOARDROOM PTY i.TD' Level 12,225
Infobip PTY Limited Australia George Street, Sydney NSW 2000

5410-1333 West Breadway, Vancouver BC
Infobip Communications Inc Canada V6H 4C1, Canada
Infobip SP Zoo Poland Ul. Powstaricéw Slaskich 24, 2 p,, 53-333
Infobip s.r.0. Slovakia Rolnicka 187, Bratislava 83107

111 Town Square Place, Suite 830, Jersey
Infobip LLC Usa City , NJ 07310, USA

Cerulean Tower 15th Floor, 26-1,
infobip G.K. Japan Sakuragaoka-cho, Shibuya-ku, Tokyo

5th Floor, 86 Jermyn Street, London
Parseco Limited UK SWi1veaw
Infobip BH d.0.0. Bosnia and Herzegovina TeSanjska 24 a, 71000 Sarajevo
infobip s.r.o. Czech Republic Na StrZi 1702/65, 140 00 Praha - Nusle
Infobip d.o.0. Croatia Istarska 157, 52 215 Vodnjan

Bulevar Zorana Dindica 48 V, sprat 5,
Infobip Serbia d.o.o. Serbia Beograd - Novi Beograd, 11173

106544, Russian Federation, Moscow, 2
Infobip iLid Russia Bulvar Enfuziastov, floor 21, room 1

7th Floor, 38, Seocho-daero 52-il,
Infobip LLC South Korea Seocho-gu, Seoul, Republic of Korea

ITF Tower, 17th Figor, 140/36 Silom Road,

Kwang, Suriyvawongese, Khet Bangrak,
infobip (Thailand) Limited Thailand Bangkok 10500

Levei 9, Lim Tower 3, 29A Nguyen Dinh

Chieu, Da Kao Ward, District 1, Ho Chi
Cong Ty Trhh Infobip Vietrnam Mirih City

Block 48, roormn No. 3-48-7 (office 703),

Nurty Tau Compiex, 15 Al- Farahi Avenue,
Infobip Kazakhstan LLP Kazakhstan Bostandyk District, 050059 Almaty city

Avenida dionisio Derteano 184 of 302 San
Infobip Peru 5.A.C. Pem Isidro, Lima, Pert
Infobip Mobile Services, Plaza de las Cortes 4, Piso B, Puerta
Sociedad Limitada Spain lzquierda, 28014, Madrid

Garrera 11 B No. 97-56 Edificio Apice
Infobip Colombia SAS Colombia Cficina 601, Bogota, Colombia

EIB Building No,1, Cffice 302, Dubai
Infobip Gulf FZ-LLC United ArabEmirates Internet City, £.8 500284, Dubai

1st Floor, Building B, Bryanston Comer, 18

Ealing Crescent, Bryanston, Johannesburg,
Infobip Africa (Pty) Limited South Africa 2191, Gauteng
Infobip Telekomunikasyoo Maslak Meydan Sk. No.3 Veko Giz Plaza
Hizmetleri LTD STI Turkey K.2t No. 74, 34396 Sariyer, Istanbul
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12 Subsidiaries (continued)
House 10, office 17, room 1, Surazhskaya

Infobip LLC Belarus
Calgada das Margaridas n°. 163, sala 02,
na Cidade de Barueri, Estado de Sé&o
Infobip Brazil Ltda Brazit ==>—Paulo; CEP’06;453-038 ” —
' 2 Siji Soetan St, off Onikepo Akande St, off
Admiralty Way Lekld Peninsula Phase 1,
Infobip Nigeria Nigeria Lagos, Nigeria

1001, Floor-10, Marathon Icon, Ganpatrao
Kadam Marg, Opp. Peninsula Corporate
Park, Lower Parel, West, Mumbai-400013.
Maharashtra. india

Avenida Paseo de ia Reforma 180, interior
Mobile Services Cloud SA de 1803, Juarez, Cuauhtemoc, 06600 Ciudad
v Maxico de Mexico

Bilquis Tower, Levei-4 (North Side), Plot 6,
Guishan Circle-2, Dhaka-1212, Bangladesh
&th Floor, Marsabit Plaza, LR No 330/676
Ngong Road, P.O. Box 21937 - 00500,
Infobip Kenya Limited Kenya Nairobi

Sky Tower, 1Cth Floor-Left Wing, P.O.Box
31227, New Bagamoyo Read, Kijitoryama,

Infobip india Private Limited  India

Infobip Limited Bangladesh

infabip Tanzania Limited Tanzania

22 soumaya street, Shehrazade residence,
Infobip SARL Morocco Sth Floor, 20000 Palmiers-Casablanca

5th Floor Rwerzori Towers, Nakasero
Infobip Uganda Limited Uganda Road PO. Box 37468, Kampala

18/F, On Building, 162 Queens Read
Infobip Limited Hong Kong Central, Central Hong Kong

08-01 Menara K1, No. 1 Loreng 3137C,
Off Jalan Kelang Lama, 58000 Kuala

Infobip Asia Pacific Sdn.Bhd Malaysia
2 rue Pasquier 75008 Paris, France

Infobip SAS France

Infobip Information Technology
(Shanghai) Limited Company China

PT. Infobip Technology

Indonesia Indonesia
Infobip {Ghana) Limited Ghana
Infobip Congo Republic Congo
Infebip Chile Limitada Chile
INFOBIPTELCOM S A, Ecuador
Progress of Technology

Limited Russia
Infobip Sweden AB Sweden
INFOBIP EGYPT LLC Egypt
Infobip Zambia Limited Zambia
Infobip Cote d'lvoire vory Coast

E08, 28th Floor, Aurora Plaza, 32 Fucheng
Road, Pudong New Area, Shanghai

Menara Prima, 23rd Floor Unit 1, JI, DR_ ide
Anak Agung Gde Agung Block 6.2,
Kawasan Mega Kuningan, Jakarta 12850
Annex B Rooms 6&7 Kejo Thompson
Road, Republic House Opposite Accra
46/8, Avenue du Livre, Gombe, Kinshasa
AV PDTE KENNEDY 6800 OF 406 A,
VITACURA, Santiago de Chile, Chile
Av. Replblica Oe3-30 e lgnacio de San
Maria, Quito, Distrito Metropolitano
Street 2-Sovetskaya, 7, Building A,
Premises/Room 14-H / 1, 191036 Saint-
Petersburg

Brunnsgatan 218, 111 38 Stockholm
Trivium Business Complex, Office no.
GA1B and GA1A, Northern 90 St. New
Unit 5B, Aquarius House Katima Mullc
Road, Olympia Park, Lusaka

Cocody, 2 Plateaux Vallton, immeuble
Antilope, 1ef élage, Porte 84 Cité
Sogefiha, 01 BP 4651 Abidjan 01
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12 Subsidiaries (continued)

Infobip Global UK

BSmart Tech Private Limited India

Infobip Phillipines Philiipines
Infobip LLC Kyrgyzstan
Infobip Paraguay S.A. Paraguay
infobip GmbH Germany
Infobip (Private) Limited Pakistan
Infobip Myanmar Company

Lirnited Myanmar
Infobip CIS MChJ Uzbekistan
Infobip Costa Rica SRL Costa Rica
Infabip Bolivia Limitada Bolivia
Infobip Limited Saudi Arabia

INFOBIP LIMITED (JORDAN) Jordan

Makinatech {Ply) Lid Republic of South Africa
Proteatech Holdings (Pty) Ltd Republic of South Africa
infobip Singapore Singapare

Compatel Limited UK

Compatel Africa (Ply) Ltd South Africa

Compatel Chile Limitada Chile

Compatel Colombia SAS Colombia

Compatel Communications RO
s.rl. Romania

Compatel d.o.o. Serbia

Compatel India Private Limited India

Compatel Informatica Lida Brazil

85 Great Portland Street First Fleor
London WAWYLT United Kingdom

1001, Floor-10, Marathon lcon, Ganpatrao
Kadam Marg, Opp. Peninsula Corporate
Park, Lower Parel, West, Mumbai-400013.

Unit 1, 15th Floor, The Curve Building,
32nd Street comer 3rd Avenue, BGC,
Taguig City 1634

125/1 Toktegula Str., Bishkek, Kyrgyzstan
Jejui 1036 casi Colen - Asuncion -
Paraguay

Maximilianplatz 22 80333 Munich,

2nd floor, No:208, ISE Towers, 55-B,
Jinnah Avenue, Islamabad

NO. 3/A, BOGYOKE ALUNG SAN ROAD,
#14-00 JUNCTION CiTY TOWER
PABEDAN TOWNSHIP, YANGON

105, Bunyodkor prospect, Chilanzar district,
Tashkent, Republic of Uzbekistan, 100161
Pavas, Rorhmoser del Pamue de Iz
Amistad, 275 N, Numerc 2486, San José
Calle Federico Zuazo 1598, Zona Cenfral,
Edificie Park Inn, Piso 11, La Paz

6897 - King Fahd Al Olaya Dist, Riyadh
12211 - 3388, Kindgdom of Saudi Arabia
Unit no. 131, Building No. 184, 3rd floor,
Princess Basma St. Abdoun, Amman
11183, Jordan

4st Floar, Building B, Bryanston Comer, 18
Ealing Crescent, Bryanston, Gauteng, RSA
1st Floor, Building 8, Bryanston Comer, 18
Ealing Crescent, Bryanston, Gauteng, RSA
171 Tras Street, #05-173A, Union Building,
Singapore 079025

85 Great Porfland Street First Floor
Londen WAWT7LT United Kingdom

1st Floor, Building B, Bryanston Comer, 18
Ealing Crescent, Bryanston, Gauteng, 2188
Avenida Bermardo Chiggins 1186, Depto.
511, Concepcian, Chile

Camera 4#66-55 Tomme C Of 203, Bogota,
Colombia

Bucharest, 56D Pasamni Street, Ground
Fleor, Office no.33, 2nd Disfrict, Romania
Palmira Toljatija 60, sprat lil, stan 16,
Beograd - Novi Beograd, 11070 Novi
Beograd, Srbija

Shop No.1, 1st Floor, AWing, Laxmi
Shopping Center Near New Post office, H
D Rd Ghatkopar West Mumbai Mumbai
City MH 400086 IN

Rua Comendador Aradjo 459, Conjunto
1003, 10° Andar, Centro, Curitiba, Parana,
CEP 8042G-000

_41-




INFOBIP LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {CONTINUED}
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

12 Subsidiaries (continued)

Compatel Kenya Limited Kenya -

Compate! LLC UsA

Compatel Nigeria Limited Nigeria

Compatel Pery 5.AC, Peru

Compatel s.ro. Czech Republic
Compatel Shpk. Albania
Compatel Telekomu nikasyon

Hizmetleri LTD STI Turkey
Compatel Ukraine Ukraine

MX-COMPATEL, SAdecv. Mexico

INFOBIP LAB 5p. z 0.0. Poland
Infobip Slovenia Slovenia
INFOBIP LEC Qatar
Infobip Information Technology

Py Litd Australia
OPENMARKET Services India

Private Limited india
OPENMARKET Limited UK
OPENMARKET INC. usA

OPENMARKET Holdings LLC USA (holding company)
ANAM TECHNOLOGIES

LIMITED Ireland
ANAM ASIA SDN. BHD. Malaysia
ARD SUAS HOLDINGS

LIMITED Irefand
INTLEACHT LIMITED Ireland

INFOBIP AUSTRIA GmbH Austria

INFOBIP Netherlands B.V. Netherlands

INFOBIF PORTUGAL,
Unipessoal Lda Portugal

INFOBIP RWANDA, Ltd Rwanda

L.R. No. 140/36 Piedmont Plaza, Ngong
Road, 00100 Nairobi, Kerya - registered
office address

19 West 34th Street, Suite 1018, New York,
NY 10001, USA

2 Siji Soetan 5t, off Onikepo Akande St,
off Admiralty Way, Lekki Peninsula Phase
1, Lagos, Nigeria

Av. de la Floresta 497, Of. 203, San
Borja, Lima 41, Peru

Klimentska 1216/46, Nove Mesto, CZ -
110 00 Prague 1, Czech Republic

Ibrahim Rugova Sir, P.O.Box 8264,
Tirana, Albania

Meydan Sireet, No 3, Veko Giz Plaza, Kat
21, No 74 Maslak, Sariyer/ istanbul

Office 505, Nizhnii Val str., 15, Kyiv,

nans

Av Paseo de |2 Reforma 180, Piso 12,
Juarez, Cuauttemnoc, 06600 COMX

ul. Powstaricéw Slaskich 2-4, 2nd floor
53-333 Wroctaw, Poland

Ameriéka ulica 8,1000 Ljubijana, Slovenia
Workinton, 7th floir, Al Gassar Tower No.
27 Fasht Lahadid No. 920, Onaiza No. 63
Doha - Qatar

BOARDROOM PTY LTD Level 12, 225
George Street, Sydney NSW 2000

Unit No. 304, B Wing, Tower 54,
Magarpatta City, Hadapsar, Pune -
411013, Maharashtra, India

15th Floor 389 Chiswick High Road,
London, Ergland, W4 4AJ

40600 Ann Arbor Rd E, Ste 201,
Plymouth, M| 48170

1209 Orange Street Wilmington, New
Castle Delaware 15801 USA

Suite 3, One Earisfort Centre, Lower
Hatch Street, Dublin 2

08-01, Menara K1, No.1 Lorong 3/137C,
Off Jalan Kelang Lama, 58000 Kuala
Lumper, W.p. Kuala Lumpur.

Suite 3, One Earisfort Centre, Lower
Hatch Street, Dublin 2

Plaza 3, Customn House Plaza,
Harbourmaster Place, |.F.5.C. Dublin 1,
DOVY76

Fleischmarkt 1, 1010 Vienna, Austria
Piet Heinkade 55, 1019GM Amsterdam
(Regus)

Avenida da Liberdade, 1259 046 Lisboa
Kacyiru, Gasabo, Umujyi wa Kigali,

In 2022 Infobip LLC USA merged info OpenMarket INC USA and it changed the name into Infobip INC USA.
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43 Financial insttuments
Group
2021 2020
€000's €000's
Carrying amount of financial assets
Debt instruments measured at amortised 566,029 270,388

Canrying amount of financial liabilities
Measured at amortised cost ’ (1,051,633) (683,507)

Finarcial assets measured at amortised cost comprise cash at bank and in hand, trade debtors, other debtors
and accrued income.

Financial Fabilities measured at amortised cost comprise trade creditors, preference shares classified as debt,
other creditors and accrued expenses.

Hedge of variable interest rate risk arising from bank loan liabilities

During the year, the group and company borrowed funds from its bankers under long term loan of $500 mil,
which is repayable in Septernber 2026.

To hedge the potential volatility in future interest cash flows arising from mevements in LIBOR, the Group has
entered into fleating to fixed interest rate swap with a nominal value equal to that of the initial borrowings, the
same term as the loan and interest re-pricing dates identical to this of the variable rate loan. This results in the
Group paying 1.7510% and receiving 3m USD LIBOR (though cash flows are seffled on a net basis) and
effectively fix the total interest cost on loan and inferest rates swap at 8.001% per annum.

The Group uses derivatives to hedge its variable interest rate risks and the fair value of the dertivative liability
at the balance sheet date was €4 438,771. The cash flows arising from the interest rate swaps will continue
until their maturity in Septernber 2026, coincidertal with the repayment of the term loans.

Changes in the fair value of the derivative recognised in other comprehensive income that were determined to
be an effective hedge amounted to €4,438,771. The hedge did not result in any ineffective portion of the change
in the fair value of the derivative being recognised in the profit or loss for the year.

The Group has applied the Amendments to FRS 102: Interest rate benchmask reform (Phase 1 and Phase 2).
The amendments provide relief in applying the reguirements of hedge accounting to certain hedges, including
allowing the Group to assume that intereat rate benchmark on which hedged cash flows are based (e.g. LIBOR)
will not be altered as a resuit of inferest rate berichmark reform. Conseguently, hedging relationships that may
have otherwise been impacted by interest rate benchmark reform have remained in place and no additional
ineffective portion of the hedge has been recognised. The Group has taken advantage of these amendments
in relation to the LIBOR interest rate noted above.
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14 Debtors
Group Company
2021 2020 2021 2020
Amounts falling due within one year: €000's €000's €000's €000's
Trade debtors 211,560 146,445 66,670 51,342
Corporation fay recoverable 10,957 6,452 - -
Amounts owed by group undertakings - - 74,537 27,712
Amounts owed by companies under
common control 2,779 2,488 1,397 1,200
Qther debtors 19,127 20,593 50,532 32,431
Prepayments and accrued income 66,568 79,611 57,183 51,370
310,991 255 589 250,319 164,055
Deferred tax asset (note 17) 5,095 619 - -
316,086 256,208 250,319 164,085
15 Creditors: amounts falling due within one year
Group Company

2021 2020 2021 2020
Notes € 000's €000's €000's €000's
Bank loans 4,403 51,198 - 50,000
Deferred tax liabilities 17 1,697 1,689 - -
Trade creditors 72,466 94,790 30,051 33,110
Amounis owed to group undertakings - - 243,747 17,181

Amoutiis due to companies under commen
control 2,502 2,233 - a7
Corporation tax payable 5,488 1,525 - -
Cther taxation and social security 8,804 10,708 - 171
Deferred income 8,112 9,635 1,948 7,281
Contingent consideration 17,487 - 17,487 -
Other creditors 15,977 4,872 9,677 366
Accruals 168,457 114,974 41,529 87,727

305393 291,626 344439 165,883

Amounts owed to group undertakings on Infobip UK Company relate to intercompany loans received from
OpenMarket US (€154m)} and OpenMarket UK (€17m) and other intercompany transactions.
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16 Long term crediters

Group Company
2021 2029 2021 2020
€000's € 000's €000's € 000's
Bank lcans 421,339 10,937 - -
Fair value hedge 4 439 - - -
Other long term creditors 581 2,224 - 1,656
426,359 13,161 - 1,656

The maturity of sources of debt finance are as follows:

Group Company
2021 2020 2021 2020
€ 000's €000's € 00Q's € 000°s
in one year or iess, or on demand 4 401 t.198 - -
In more than one year but not 434,843 9,738 . B

more than five years

During the year, the Group borrowed funds from its bankers. The loan (reporing date camying amount of
€439,044,000) is repayable in September 2026, The loans accrue interest at a variable rate equivalent to 3m USD
LIBOR plus 6.25%. Issue costs of €19m were incurred, which have been deducted from the initiai carrying value
and will be charged to profit or {oss as part of the nterest charge calculated using the effective interest rate method.
The cash for this loan was received net of the issue costs. In 2021 €1m of loan issue costs was amortised during
the period.

The Group has entered inta floating to fixed interest rate swap with a fixed leg of 1.7510% and a variable rate leg
equat to 3m USD LIBOR. This is accounted for as a cash flow hedge (see note 13).

As at 31 Decaember 2021, the Group is exposed to risks ansing from interest rate benchmark reform as LIBOR is
replaced with atternative benchmark interest rates. The quantitative exposure is disclosed above.

As disclosed in note 13, the Group has applied the Amendments to FRS 102: interest rate benchmark refonm (Phase
1 and Phase 2). Applying the practicat expediert introduced by the amendments, when the benchmark affecting the
Group’s loan is replaced, the adjustments to the contractual cash flows will be reflected as an adjustment to the
effective interest rate. Therefore, the replacement of the loan’s benchmark interest rate will not resuff in an immediate
gain ar loss recorded in profit or loss, which may have been required if the practical expedient was not available or
adepted. As at 31 December 2021, the Group expects the bank loan to transition to atemative interest rate
benchmark by the end of 2022.
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17 Deferred taxation

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset where the group or company has a legally enforceable right fo do
s0. The following is the analysis of the deferred tax balances (after offset) for financial reporting ptrposes.

Assets  Assets Liabilities Liabilities

2021 2020 2021 2020
Group €000's €000's €000's €000's
Accelerated capital allowances 5,095 619 (1,697 (1,689)

Net Net
2021 2020
£000's €000's

3,388 (1,070

The Group has tax losses that arose in various tax jurisdiction of €125,825 thousand that are available indefinitely

for offsetting against future taxable profits of the companies in which the losses arose.

Deferred tax asseis have not been mcognised in respect of these losses as they may not be used to offset taxable
profits elsewhere in the Group. The subsidiaries have been loss-making for some time without any positive outfook
for future taxable profits, and there are no other tax planning opportunities or other evidence of recoverability in the
near future. |f the Group was able to recognise all unrecognised deferred tax assets, the profit would increase by

€13, 713 thousand.
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18 Share-based payments

The group has two share schemes in place during the year, being the Equity settled share options {*SOP")
scheme (as described below) and the General Incertive Plan ("GIP™) which is set out further within the share
capital note (note 19).

Equity setited share ogptions schemes

The right to acquire shares in Infobip, will be granted fo participants selected by the Committee. Once the
criteria attaching to Participant's options have been satisfied, Participant may exercise option granted and
acquire the shares.

The vesting conditions of the share options are as follows:

1)) In the evert that an iPD occurs prier to the fourth anniversary of the date of grant of the Option, the
Ogption shall only become exercisable upon the Fourth Anniversary. In the event that an IPO occurs foflowing
the Fourth Anniversary, the Option shall become exercisable immediately following the PO subject to any Lock
in Period.

(i) A sale of Infobip occurs when any person of company acquires either: (i) more than 50% of the issued
voting rights of Infabip; ar (ii) substartially alt of the assets and/or business of Infobip.

in the event that a sale of infobip oceurs pror to the Fourth Anniversary, pait of Participant’s option shall
automatically become exercisable immediately priorto, and conditional upon, the sale. The part of aption which
shall become exercisable will be caleulated in accordance with the following percentages:

. If the sale occurs after the 1st anniversary of the grant date, but before the 2nd anniversary of the
grant date, option shall become exercisable as to 25% of the shares in respect of which it was grarted;

. If the sale occurs after the 2nd anniversary of the grant date, but before the 3id anniversary of the
grant date, oplion shall becorne exercisable as to 50% ofthe shares in respect of which it was granted;

. If the sale oceurs after the 3rd anniversaty of the grant date, but before the 4th anniversary of the grant
date, option shall become exercisable as to 75% of the shares in respect of which it was granted.

In the event that a sale of Infobip oceurs on or following the Fourth Anniversary, option shall automatically
become fully exercisable, immediately prior to, and conditional upon, the sale. !f no IPO or saje of infobip takes
place within 8 years of the date of the grant of option or if Participant should choose not to exercise optiens
granted during this time, then such option shall lapse.

Details of the share options outstanding during 2020 and 2021 are as follows:

Group Number of share options Weighted average
exercise price
2021 2020 2021 2020

Number Number €000's €000's

Outstanding at 1 January 2021 3,423,633 2,663,139 535 3.74
Granted 1,852,504 871,726 2584 774
Forfeited (435,142)  (111,232) 18.18 4.56
Outstanding at 31 December 2021 4,940,995 3,423,633

During 2021, no epticns were exercised {2020: nil). The options outstanding at the end of the year have a
weighted average contractual life of 3.38 years (2020: 2.27).

The Group did not enter into any share-based payment transactions with parties other than employees during
the currertt or prior periods.
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18

19

Share-based payments (continued)

No share based payment charge has been inciuded in the financial statements, in the currert or prior period.

Share capital and reserves

Group Company

2021 2020 201 2020
Ordinary share capital €000's €000's € 000's €000's
A class ordinary share capital
Issued and fully paid
61215878 of £1 each 84,477 85,002 B84 477 85,002
B class ordinary share capital
Issued and fully paid
642,188 of £2.88 each 7 7 7 7
Class D shares issue
78,964 of £1 each g2 - a2 -
Share premium 3,807 2,041 3,607 2,041
Share repurchase reserve (8,475) - (89.475) -
Total share capital 78,708 87,080 78,708 87,050
Shares classified as debt
C class ordinary share capital
Issued and fully paid
11,408,703 of £1 each 283,331 293,331 293,331 293331
Relled up interest 62,222 12,625 62,222 12,625
Total 355,553 305,956 355,553 305956

A class shares have full rights with regards to voting, participation, capital repayment and dividends. B class
shares rank pari passu with the exception that B class shares have no rights in the company with respect to

voting.

B ondinary shares were issued under a General incentive Plan (GIP) as part of Employees Share Options Plan
(ESOP). There were no issue in the period.

In the GIP, participants are offered the right to acquire shares in Infobip at Fair Market Value. The Fair Market
Value will be deterrrined in advance on the basis of a valuation provided by an independent reputable valuer.
{fand when Infobip’s shares are listed on a stock exchange, the Fair Market Value will be the price of the shares

on the stock exchange at the relevant time.
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19

Share capital and reserves (continued)

Participanis may pay for the cost of acquiring the shares with either: (i} personat funds or (ii) 2 loan provided by
Infabip for the purpases of funding this cost.

Participants cannot use this loan for any other purpose, other than to acquite shares. The amount of the lcan
will be equivalent to the Fair Market Value of the total number of shares the participart will acquire. The lean
will carry an irterest rate of 3% per year. The interest payable on the loan wilt be rofled up, i.e. interest will not
be payable on an annual basis but will be aggregated and must be paid on repayment af the loan.

The Ian will need to be repaid on the earlier of (7} the date failing 4 years and 3 months after the date of the
grant; and (i} 7 days following the date the participant sells or transfers shares in accordance with the rules of
the plan.

It is infobip's irtention that loan may be repaid in one of the following ways (i) the net amount of any dividend
paid in respect of shares (ii) if the participart should dispose of shares, the proceeds from the disposal will be
applied in repayment of the Loan or (i) from the participant's own funds.

The Group and Company's reserves are as follows:

. Called up share capital reserve represents the nominal value of the shares issued.

. Proft and loss acecount represent cumulative profits or losses, net of dividends paid and other
adjustments.

«  The foreign cumrency translation reserve is created when the results of subsidiaries are translated from
local functional currency to the group's presentational cumrency on consolidation.

+  The merger reserve represents the efimination of certain subsidiary share capital and investment
figures associated with the acquisition of subsidiary comparies completed under merger accounting.

Preference convertible shares relate to Class C shares, issued in 2020. These comprise both neminal share
capital and share premium amounting to €300m, decreased by transaction costs amounting to €6.7m. Share
premium is not recognised in the financial statements as the shares are classified as a liability. The shares are
classified as liabilities as they attract an annual preference dividend of 15% that rolls up and is converiible,
alongside the original capital, on certain fukure events.

At 31.12.2021 total accrued interest on the preference Class C shares were €62m.
On'S May 2021, Company has issued 78,994 class D shares for non cash consideration of € 5,302,483.00.

On 12 March 2021, the Company entered into a buyback agreement for purchase of 380,224 A class shares
for consideration of € 10,000,014, which were then cancelled.

To facilitate Share buyback, on 8 March 2021 the Company carried out a reduction of its legal share premium
account by € 70,000,000.00 {the Reduction amount) from € 289,390,482 .29 to € 219,390,482.29 in accordance
with the solvency statement procedure under section 641(1)(a) of Companies act Share premium in amount of
€ 289,390,482 29 consisted of € 2,040 821 61 created on subscription of B class shares on 13 September
2017, and €287,349,560.68 created on subscription of C class shares on 7 August 2020 and 19 October 2020.
Share premium on C class shares does not appear in Statement of changes in equity as C class shares are
classified as liability.

The Reduction of Capital was cairied out by the Compary in compliance with the Solvency Statement Procedure
and the refevant documents were registered with Companies House on 9 March 2021. On registration of the
Reduction of Capital: (i) the Reduction Amount was credited to a special reserve of the Company; and i) the
fuil amount of that reserve was immediately set against the deficit appearing in the profit and loss account of
the Company. The balance of the Reduction Amount, having been sel against the deficit appearting in the profit
and loss accourt of the Company, became distributable.

Following the Reduction of Capital, the Company carried out the Share Buyback in accordance with section 690
of Companies act.
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20 Operating lease commitments

At the reporting end date the group had outstanding commitments for future minimum lease payments under

nencancellable operating leases, which fall due as follows:

Group
2021
€000's

Within one year 5,602
Between two and five years 8,228
In over five years 435

14,268

2020
€00's

4861
8,438
1326

14,625

Company
2021
€ 000's

283
192

480

2020
€000's

14

14

The Greup has capital commitments due within one year amounting fo €674,367 (2020: €5,138,000).
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FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021

21 Related party transactions

Remuneration of key management personnel
Remuneration for Directors and key management personnel is detailed below:

2021 2020

€000's €000's

Directors’ remuneration 1,027 567
Amounts paid to third parties in respect of directors' services 2 7
1,028 574

2021 2020

€000's €000's

Directors' remuneration 1,029 574
Senior management remuneration 2,863 1,489
3,862 2,063

All directors and certain senior employees who have authority and responsibifity for planning, directing and
cortrolling the activities of the Group are considered to be key management personnel.

Highest paid company Director was paid £224,000 (2020: £153,000).

Transactions with related parties
Entities over which the group has control, joint control or significant influence comprise joirt ventuses.,
Commonly controlled entities comprise entities which are ultimately cortrolied by the same parties as the group.

During the year the group entered into the following transactions with related parties.

Sales Purchases
2021 2020 201 2020
€000's €000's € 000's €000's
Group
Comrnenly controlled entities 654 an 684 408
654 BO1 684 408
Company
Commonty controlled entities 233 489 147 47
233 489 147 47
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Al

Related party transactions (continued)

The following amounts were outstanding at the reporting end date:

Amounts due to related parties

Group
Commonly controlied entities

Company
Commonly controlled entities

The following amounts were outstanding at the reporting end date:

Amounts due from related parties

Group
Commonly controlled entities

Company
Commanly controlled entities

2021
€000's

2,502

2,502

2021
€000's

2,779

2,778

1,397

1,397

2020
€000's

2,233

2,233

47

47

2020
€000's

2,488

2,488

1,200

1,200
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22 Business combinations
Acquisition of Anram
On 5 May 2021 the Group acquired 100% of Anam Group companies, a provider of cloud based wholesale

application-to-person (A2P} short messaging service (SMS) revenue assurance sotutions, located in treland and
Malaysia, for €40m paid mainly in cash.

€000's
Purchase consideration paid in cash 20,880
Purchase consideration by afletment of shares 1,658
Contingert purchase consideration 17487
40,025
Revaluation
Book vailue adjustment Fair value
€ 000's €000's €000's
Fixed assets
Tangible 149 - 149
Intangible - S00 a00
Current assets
Trade debtors 2,072 - 2,072
Accried income 1,724 - 1,724
Other debtors 85 - 85
Cash at bank and in hand 1,253 - 1,253
Total assets 5,283 200 6,183
Creditors
Trade creditors (546) . (548)
Actrials and deferred income {476) - (476}
Loan note interest accrual (479) - 479)
Other creditors 66) - (66)
Deferred tax on differences between fair values and (245) 35 210)
tax bases
Net assets 3,471 935 4,405
Goodwill 35,619
Total purchase consideration {(incl. contingent consideration) 40,025
Purchase consideration settled in cash 20,880
Cash and cash equivalents acquired {1,253)
Cash outfiow on acquisifion 19,627

The irangible assets reflect the recognition of trade names on acquistion. Deferred tax is in relation to these
adjustments.

The useful economic life of goodwill has been estimated to be & years, while useful life of itangibie assets is
estimated to be 10 years.

fnciuded within goodwill are intangible assets that do not meet the criteria for separate recegnition in the financial
statements. These intangible assets relate to customer relationships and developed technology, Since the
acquisition date, Anam Group has contributed € 6,906,218 to Group turnover and € 1,447,165 to Group profit.

Contingent consideration was paid on 5 May 2022 in full amount of € 17,486,903
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23 Net debt reconciliation

1 January Cash &T‘?::;:::c:; Oﬁ'ner;l::t; 31 December
2021 flows subsidiaries changes 2021
€000's €000's €000's €000's €000's

Cash at bank and
in hand 78,250 241,871 1,253 1,845 323219

Bank and other

loans (63,709) (356,753) - (1,036} {421,498)
Praference shares {305,858) - - (49.597) {355,553)
Net debt {291,415} (114,882} 1,263 {48,788) (453,832}

24 Subsidiary undertaking audit exemptions

The parent, being Infobip Limited, has faken the exemption requirements under section 478A of the Companies
Act 2006 not to file awdited accounts for wholly owned subsidiaries OpenMarket UK, Infobip Global Limifed,
Parseco Limited and Compate! Limited for the year ended 31 December 2021. All four subsidiaries are included
in the parent's consofidated accounts for the current and prior year.

25 Ultimate controlling party

The immediate controfiing party of the group and company is Infobfp Holdings Umited, Cayman {stands, and
uitimate controlliing party of the group and company is Silvio Kutic.

26 Post balance sheet events

On 25 July 2022 the Group has completed acquisition of the US-based VelP provider Peerless Netwark.
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